
AGENDA 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

FAIR OAKS WATER DISTRICT OFFICE 

10326 FAIR OAKS BLVD, FAIR OAKS 

JANUARY 21, 2025 

6:30 PM 

The Board of Directors of the Fair Oaks Water District holds its Regular Board Meetings on the third Monday of 

each month at 6:30 p.m. The meetings are held at the District Offices located at 10326 Fair Oaks Blvd., Fair Oaks, 

CA 95628. The Board may discuss any item on the agenda and may act on any of those items. 

The Board of Directors welcomes public participation in its meetings. Public comments relating to matters within 

jurisdiction of the District, and not included on the posted agenda, may be addressed under “public comment,” both 

at the beginning and at the end of the meeting, subject to reasonable time limitations for each speaker. Please note 

that State law prevents the Board from discussing or acting on items not listed on the agenda. Public comments 

relating to matters listed on the agenda may be provided at the time when that agenda item is heard. 

Agenda items are numbered for identification purposes only and will not necessarily be considered in the indicated 

order. Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and may be acted upon by the Board by one 

motion, without discussion; however, any item may be considered separately at the request of any Board member or 

any member of the public. 

In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, if you have a disability and need a disability-related 

modification or accommodation to participate in this meeting, please contact the Human Resource Administrator at 

(916) 967-5723. Requests must be made as early as possible, and at least one full business day before the start of the

meeting.

I. CALL TO ORDER

II. PUBLIC COMMENT

III. CONSENT CALENDAR

1. Approval of Minutes

a. Regular Board Meeting of December 16, 2024

2. Accept and File Treasurer’s Report for the month of December 2024

Page 1 of 185



FAIR OAKS WATER DISTRICT 

AGENDA – January 21, 2025 

PAGE 2 

 

3. File Investment Report for the month of November 2024 

4. Accept and File Financial Expense Report for the month of December 2024 

5. Approval of Warrants  

6. Approval of Cal-Card Statements for the month of December 2024  

7. Approval of Board Expense Report for the month of December 2024 

IV. PRESENTATIONS AND CORRESPONDENCE 

1. None 

V. DISCUSSION AND ACTION ITEMS: OLD BUSINESS 

1. Board discussion and direction on the process for the appointment of the Director to represent FOWD 

Division 2 

2. Update and discussion on the Northridge Well Project 

3. Update and discussion on “Make Water a California Way of Life” regulations that took effect on 

January 1, 2025 

4. Update and discussion on the proposed merger of SJWD and SSWD 

VI. DISCUSSION AND ACTION ITEMS: NEW BUSINESS  

1. Consider appointments to serve as District representatives to various organizations and committees 

2. Sacramento Region comments on the Draft Sacramento / Delta Bay-Delta Updates to the Water 

Quality Control Plan 

3. Discussion on FOWD Water Supply for the month of December 2024 and 2024 year-end 

4. Discussion and possible action on 2024 funds for work in progress projects to be carried forward to 

2025 and additional funding for 2025 expenses 

5. Update and discussion on FOWD participation in the Fair Oaks Community Menorah Lighting Event 

6. Update and discussion on FOWD 2024 Metered Water Deliveries 

7. Update and discussion on FOWD Fire Hydrants and readiness to perform 

8. Discussion and possible action on General Manager’s Amended and Restated Employment Agreement 

9. Discussion and possible action on Board Member request for FOWD participation in upcoming local 

events 

VII. UPCOMING EVENTS 

1. January 29, 2025 / FOWD Presentation to the FOHS / Fair Oaks 

2. February 11, 2025 / Supervisor Desmond Community Meeting / FOWD   

3. February 13, 2025 / SGA Board Meeting / Sacramento 

4. February 18, 2025 / RWA Board Meeting / Sacramento 

 

VIII. REPRESENTATIVE REPORTS 

1. Sacramento Groundwater Authority (SGA) 

2. Regional Water Authority (RWA) 

3. Sacramento Water Forum 

4. Other 

Page 2 of 185



Page 3 of 185



 

 

January 21, 2025 

Staff Report Briefing Materials 

AGENDA ITEM III.1a 

Approval of Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting of December 16, 2024 

 

 

 

 

Page 4 of 185



Page 1 of 11 

 
 

AGENDA ITEM III.1a 

Regular Board Meeting  

Unapproved Minutes 

December 16, 2024 

 

District Attendees 

Chris Petersen 

Mark Dolby 

Michael McRae 

Misha Sarkovich 

Tom R. Gray 

Shawn Huckaby 

Chi Ha-Ly  

Paul Siebensohn 

Rebecca Simon 

Nick Kepler 

Board President 

Board Vice President 

Board Member 

Board Member 

General Manager 

Operations Manager 

Finance Manager 

Technical Services Manager 

Human Resource Administrator 

Operations Superintendent  

 

Other Attendees    

  

Jeffrey Mitchell   Kronick Moskovitz Tiedemann & Girard, Legal Counsel  

Paul Helliker    SJWD General Manager 

George Babcock   Visiting Customer 

Carolyn Bramson   Visitor 

Barbara Beck    Visitor 

Don Gilliland    Visitor 

    

Absent 

Randy Marx    Board Member  

     

    
         

AGENDA ITEMS 
 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

• President Petersen called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.  

• General Manager Gray noted that Director Marx informed FOWD that he will not be 

attending tonight’s meeting. 
 

 

II. PUBLIC COMMENT 

• Visiting Customer Babcock thanked Director McRae for his service. He agrees with 

the policies Director McRae has previously expressed. Visiting Customer Babcock 

believes that Director McRae is part of a well-working Board and works well with 

Page 5 of 185



Page 2 of 11 

management. Overall, it is a very good team, and Director McRae will be missed. He 

also noted that Director McRae has been part of the Board for about twelve years. 

• SJWD General Manager Helliker commented on water conservation regulations, 

effective January 1st. They will have a significant impact on SJWD’s operations and 

retail areas. We have shared information with you about what those impacts will be, 

what the problems are with the regulations in a comment letter that SJWD submitted. 

SJWD’s Board will be discussing this topic again at the Board meeting on Wednesday 

(12/18/2024) about next steps. He hopes there is an opportunity to collaborate on this 

with FOWD. He mentioned the regulations are based upon an approach that is not 

consistent with the law. If it were consistent with the law, the requirements would be 

much less onerous. Ratepayers will be the ones on the hook to pay for the cost of trying 

to meet these requirements. Statistically, both retail and wholesale demand have 

dropped by 30% over the past twenty years. Trying to meet a 23% or 31% additional 

reduction will be difficult and expensive. The full impact will take place in 2040, but 

the time is now to address the regulations. 

• President Petersen thanked SJWD General Manager Helliker for the information and 

noted he watched the five-minute water commission video linked by SJWD. 

III. CONSENT CALENDAR  

  The following consent calendar items were considered and acted upon as follows: 

1. Approval of Minutes 

a. Regular Board Meeting of November 18, 2024 

2. Accept and File Treasurer’s Report for the month of November 2024 

3. File Investment Report for the month of October 2024 

4. Accept and File Financial Expense Report for the month of November 2024 

5. Approval of Warrants 

6. Approval of Cal-Card Statements for the month of November 2024 

7. Approval of Board Expense Report for the month of November 2024 

 

Director Sarkovich moved to approve the consent calendar as presented. 

Director McRae seconded the motion. 

Motion carried with the following votes: Dolby – aye, McRae – aye, Petersen – aye, 

and Sarkovich – aye. 

Absent: Director Marx 

 

IV. PRESENTATIONS AND CORRESPONDENCE 

1. Staff presentation on the “State of the Fair Oaks Water District Entering 2025” 

• General Manager Gray provided a summary and overview via a PowerPoint 

presentation. 

• President Petersen stated the information in the presentation was impressive. He 

stated his appreciation and thanked General Manager Gray and staff for their hard 

work and for keeping the District going and thriving. 

Page 6 of 185



Page 3 of 11 

• An unknown customer inquired if the PowerPoint presentation will be available 

on the website. 

• General Manager Gray responded that it will be posted tomorrow on the website. 

• Director McRae suggested that staff review the slide mentioning 300% before it is 

posted on the website, as it was unclear to him what the slide was referring to. 

• General Manager Gray clarified that this slide mentioned one of the key 

accomplishments in 2024.  In twenty (20) years, FOWD’s fixed assets have gone 

up by 300%. A 300% increase in value since 2004” (slide 20/26). 

• Director McRae inquired about the value of the District’s assets, if and when the 

District needs to borrow money.  

• General Manager Gray responded that it comes into play with the debt rating. 

• Direct McRae commented that if someone had a lot of debt but not many assets or 

collateral, they may not be able to get very good rates. 

• General Manager Gray stated that sometimes an Agency will be required to 

increase the rates to have the debt coverage. 

• Director Sarkovich stated loan companies look at the cash flow when dealing with 

a public agency like FOWD. Loan companies know a public agency will not sell 

an asset (a well) to satisfy a debt. FOWD has plenty of room to borrow money, if 

we want to, due to the capital improvements and cash flow. 

• General Manager Gray added that typically, debt will be secured with your rates..  

 

2. Oath of Office for the Director representing Division 3 on the FOWD Board of 

Directors 

• General Manager Gray swore Director Dolby into office. 

 

3. Oath of Office for the Director representing Division 4 on the FOWD Board of 

Directors 

• Director Marx is absent tonight; he will be sworn into office at a later time.  

 

4. Oath of Office for the Director representing Division 5 on the FOWD Board of 

Directors 

• General Manager Gray swore Director Sarkovich into office.  

 

5. Accept the resignation of FOWD Director representing Division 2 and 

acknowledge his election to the San Juan Water District Board of Directors 

• Director McRae stated he has served this Board for many years and has grown a lot 

personally. He has enjoyed working with the FOWD Board and staff. This has been 

a major part of his life. 

• Director McRae stated he will remain living in Fair Oaks and is planning to 

occasionally attend FOWD Board meetings and will stay in touch. 

 

6. Recognize FOWD Director Petersen for serving as the 2024 FOWD Board 

President 

• General Manager Gray recognized President Petersen for serving as Board 

President in 2024. 

Page 7 of 185



Page 4 of 11 

• President Petersen appreciated the support he received from the Board in 2024. 

 

7. FOWD awarded the GFOA Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in 

Financial Reporting for the twenty-third consecutive year 

• Information only. This is the highest form of recognition in government accounting 

and financial reporting. 

• Director McRae and President Petersen thanked staff for their hard work. 

 

V. DISCUSSION AND ACTION ITEMS: OLD BUSINESS 

1. Update and discussion on the New York Water Main Replacement Project  

Phase I 

• General Manager Gray provided an update and overview. The water system work 

has been completed; the roadway has been patched but the paving is still pending 

due to weather conditions. Permanent paving will now be done in Spring of 2025. 

 

2. Update and discussion on the FOWD customer damage related to the New York 

Water Main Replacement Project Phase I 

• General Manager Gray provided an overview and update.  

• FOWD’s insurance company met with the homeowners. Homeowners informed 

FOWD staff that they were happy with the progress since FOWD’s insurance 

company engaged with them. 

• FOWD continues to monitor the issue relative to final resolution and FOWD 

customer satisfaction. 

• President Petersen inquired if homeowners will be receiving payment from the 

insurance company. 

• General Manager Gray responded that the insurance company has already issued 

an initial progress payment for out-of-pocket money spent by the homeowners, 

even though a resolution has not been reached at this time. 

• President Petersen inquired about the extent of damage and insurance claim. 

• General Manager Gray and Operations Manager Huckaby mentioned there was 

damage to the yard/landscaping and basement of the house.  

• Visitor Gilliland introduced himself and stated being one of the affected customers. 

He asked if there is still a pending investigation regarding the contractor’s 

responsibility.  

• General Manager Gray stated that FOWD’s insurance is advocating on District 

Customer’s behalf, this is not an issue visitor Gilliland will need to address himself. 

FOWD is currently monitoring the situation and will be in contact with him when 

necessary. 

 

VI. DISCUSSION AND ACTION ITEMS: NEW BUSINESS  

1. Discussion and possible action on FOWD Resolution No. 24-04 – “A Resolution 

Recognizing Michael McRae for Serving the Community as a Director of the 

Fair Oaks Water District” 

• General Manager Gray stated that Director McRae was elected to be on the SJWD 

Board of Directors. He cannot hold two offices at once, therefore, he is resigning 

from FOWD. 

Page 8 of 185



Page 5 of 11 

• General Manger Gray stated that the Board of Directors of the FOWD put 

together a resolution and proceeded to read it. 

• Director Sarkovich expressed his gratitude for Director McRae’s twelve years of 

service. He enjoyed having Director McRae as part of the FOWD Board. He is 

looking forward to working with Director McRae as the voice of Fair Oaks while 

being part of the SJWD Board. 

• Director McRae thanked Director Sarkovich and stated that it has been wonderful 

working with Director Sarkovich, as he has learned a lot from him. 

• President Petersen also expressed his gratitude towards Director McRae for 

bringing him up to speed on a number of issues. He stated that he enjoyed 

working with him on the 2x2 Committee with SJWD and hopes to continue 

working with him in that capacity.  

• Director Dolby also expressed his gratitude towards Director McRae. 

• Director McRae stated that President Petersen and Director Dolby are the newest 

Board Members, and they have been a wonderful addition to the Board. 

 

Director Sarkovich moved to approve the FOWD Resolution No. 24-04 as presented. 

Director Dolby seconded the motion. 

Motion carried with the following votes: Dolby – aye, McRae – abstained, Petersen – 

aye, and Sarkovich – aye. 

Absent: Director Marx 

 

2. Discussion on the requirements for filling the vacant seat on the FOWD Board of 

Directors representing Division 2 

• Legal Counsel Mitchell provided an overview. 

• General Manager Gray pointed out that the Public Notice and application included 

in the Board packet, for the Board’s review and consideration will have applications 

submitted by close of business on January 15, 2025.  The Board would take those 

applications under considerations and possibly hold interviews. 

• General Manager Gray addressed questions regarding the requirement to be a 

registered voter. Sacramento County Elections is responsible for verifying each 

applicant meets the requirements mentioned in the Public Notice. 

• Director Sarkovich suggested adding the option to accept applications via email. 

• Legal Counsel Mitchell stated that the Board can decide to add the email option, 

but it has to be clearly stated on the notice. The application must be signed by the 

applicant. 

• Director Sarkovich provided a description of the overall process based on his 

experience. The interviews will be conducted during public meetings. The objective 

is to be clear and transparent. 

• Discussion regarding the timing, deadline, steps, and exposure time took place. 

• Legal Counsel Mitchell stated that the Public Notice needs to be posted at least 

fifteen (15) days before the Board makes an appointment. 

• Discussion about the application deadline took place. 

Page 9 of 185



Page 6 of 11 

• An unknown visitor commented that she agrees with the January 15 application 

deadline. Having the deadline before then is not a good idea because people are still 

busy with holiday festivities and vacations.  

• Discussion took place about whether the interviews should take place during the 

regular Board meeting.  

• The Board decided to keep January 15, 2025, as the deadline. 

• FOWD will appoint a person in accordance with Government Code 1780 to fill a 

vacancy representing Division 2 on the Board of Directors. 

• Legal Counsel Mitchell provided the following information: 

o The Board cannot meet in closed session to interview candidates because 

Directors are not considered employees and therefore, fall under the personnel 

exception 

• If a bunch of applications are received, an Ad-Hoc committee can  meet, not in a 

public meeting, to sort through the applications and maybe make a recommendation 

of half a dozen for the full Board.  From that point, applications for Board 

consideration have to be in a public meeting. General Manager Gray stated it is the 

Board’s discretion whether to interview all candidates or select candidates based 

on qualifications. 

• An unknown visitor inquired if customers outside of Division 2 will also be notified 

about this Board opening—like a bill insert. She referenced the division map shown 

on page 63/104 of the Board Packet. 

• General Manager Gray stated that the vacant position will be posted on FOWD’s 

website (by tomorrow), it will be included in more agendas, it will be posted outside 

the administration building and at the Fair Oaks library. He is contemplating putting 

it in the American River Messenger. By law, the Board opening needs to be posted 

in three conspicuously known public areas. There is no time to put it in as a bill 

insert. 

• An unknown visitor inquired if the application can be a fillable pdf form. 

• General Manager Gray agreed that a fillable pdf application will be available. No 

wet signature required; an electronic signature will be fine. FOWD staff will verify 

the identity of the applicant during the interview process. 

 

3. Discussion and possible action on the selection of a Board President and Vice 

President for 2025 

• General Manager Gray stated that the typical protocol is to have the Vice President 

become the President the following year. Director Dolby would be considered to 

fill the role of Board President in 2025. 

• Director Dolby stated he would not like to serve as the Board President in 2025. It 

will conflict with family commitments.  

• Director Sarkovich is next in line for President and accepted being the next 

appointed Board President. 

• Director McRae inquired if he should abstain from the vote. 

• The Board decided Director McRae should vote. 

• General Manager Gray highlighted that the Board Packet includes all government 

codes and requirements. The staff report spells out all the requirements. 

Page 10 of 185



Page 7 of 11 

 

President Petersen moved to appoint Director Sarkovich as the 2025 President. 

Director Dolby seconded the motion. 

Motion carried with the following votes: Dolby – aye, McRae – aye, Petersen – aye, 

and Sarkovich – abstained. 

Absent: Director Marx 

 

Director Sarkovich moved to appoint Director Marx as the 2025 Vice President. 

Director Dolby seconded the motion. 

Motion carried with the following votes: Dolby – aye, McRae – aye, Petersen – aye, 

and Sarkovich – aye. 

Absent: Director Marx 

 

4. Discussion and possible action on the 2025 Salary Ranges for all Board approved 

positions 

• General Manager Gray provided an overview. 

• The Board discussed the salary schedule, specifically item seven. 

• Director Sarkovich suggested deleting this item. Staff salaries are based on steps 

and Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA). The only exception is the General 

Manager’s contract.  This embeds the salary for General Manager being based on 

other water agencies salary and Director Sarkovich is against that. 

• President Petersen stated that we run FOWD like a business, and if the leader of the 

business should  be paid based on market value or they go to another company. 

Director Petersen would be fine striking the word average from item seven but 

wants to preserve something other than the COLA for General Manager position. 

• An unknown visitor inquired if there is a formula used to determine the salary of 

the General Manager. 

• Director Sarkovich responded that it is a contract and there is no formula to 

determine the salary of the General Manager. It depends on the previous contract 

and the average salary of nearby agencies, then the Board votes. This would be the 

first time it would be imbedded.  

• General Manager Gray recommended item seven be removed. The salary range can 

be revised, if necessary. 

• President Petersen stated he is in favor of removing item seven and keeping the 

salary schedule as presented.  

• General Manager Gray stated that item seven was not intended to be a policy 

discussion, and it could be deleted. He stated that with item seven struck,  for the 

Board information, FOWD’s top salary range is the average of other nearby 

agencies. Other water agencies have a higher salary for the General Manager.  

General Manager Gray stated that what FOWD has for the General Manager salary 

range is fair. 

• General Manager Gray addressed questions regarding salary ranges, steps, COLA 

and the annual internal evaluation process by the management team. 

Page 11 of 185



Page 8 of 11 

• An unknown visitor inquired about the stipends Board Members receive and how 

the amount is determined. 

• Director Sarkovich stated that in 2004, the stipend was $100 per meeting. Staff has 

made recommendations in the past to raise the stipend, but he feels it is his civil 

duty and contribution to the community. He is not serving as a Board Member for 

financial gain. In 2025 the FOWD Board stipend remains at $100. 

• General Manager Gray mentioned that Director McRae’s stipend will be $200 per 

meeting as a SJWD Board Member. He also noted that Board Members do not get 

the protection FOWD employees get. Board Members receive no benefits. 

• President Petersen mentioned he agrees with Director Sarkovich. He has been part 

of other Boards where there is no stipend and it is purely a voluntary position. 

 

President Petersen moved to approve the 2025 Salary Ranges as presented, but 

removing item seven. 

Director Sarkovich seconded the motion. 

Motion carried with the following votes: Dolby – aye, McRae – aye, Petersen – aye, 

and Sarkovich – aye. 

Absent: Director Marx 

 

5. Discussion and possible action on the Sacramento LAFCo’s nominations for 

membership on Special District Advisory Committee 

• Information only. 

 

6. Update and discussion on FOWD’s Annual Financial Risk Assessment 

• Information only. Discussion was held, no comments. 

 

7. Discussion and possible action on FOWD Policy No. 5070: “Investment of District 

Funds” 

• The Board decided no changes were necessary. 

 

8. Discussion on FOWD Water Supply for the month of November 2024 

• Technical Services Manager Siebensohn provided a summary of the water supply 

report. He addressed questions from the Board concerning the operation of wells. 

• General Manager Gray stated that FOWD meets its demand with 10% groundwater. 

Wells are being rotated and ready to serve. He also confirmed this is the first year 

Skyway Well is operational and is working fine. 

• General Manager Gray noted that FOWD has three wells that produce over 2,000 

gallons per minute, some of the highest producing wells North of the American 

River. New York Well is expected to produce at this capacity.  

 

9. Discussion and possible action on additional funding for 2024 expenses 

• General Manager Gray stated that staff recommends the Board to authorize the 

transfer of $1,078 from the contingency fund to cover 2024 expenses.  

 

Page 12 of 185



Page 9 of 11 

Director McRae moved to approve the transfer of $1,078 from the contingency fund to 

cover 2024 expenses as presented. 

Director Sarkovich seconded the motion. 

Motion carried with the following votes: Dolby – aye, McRae – aye, Petersen – aye, 

and Sarkovich – aye. 

Absent: Director Marx 

VII. UPCOMING EVENTS

1. December 18, 2024 / SJWD Regular Board Meeting / SJWD Office

a) Includes the swearing in of Mike McRae as the SJWD Director representing

Division 4

b) Includes a discussion and possible action on the SJWD merging with the SSWD

• General Manager Gray encouraged the public and FOWD Board to attend this

meeting.

VIII. REPRESENTATIVE REPORTS

1. Sacramento Groundwater Authority (SGA)

• None. They met on December 12, 2024. Had their audit report presented by

Richardson & Company, which will be FOWD’s incoming auditor.

2. Regional Water Authority (RWA)

• None.

3. Sacramento Water Forum

• None.

4. Other

• None.

IX. DIRECTORS’ REPORTS & COMMENTS

1. Budget Committee – (Sarkovich, Dolby)

• None.

2. Technical Advisory Committee – (Marx, Petersen)

• None.

3. Capital Improvement Committee – (Petersen, Dolby)

• None.

4. Personnel Committee – (McRae, Dolby)

• None.

Page 13 of 185



Page 10 of 11 

5. Public Relations Committee – (McRae, Dolby) 

• None.  

 

6. FOWD and SJWD 2x2 Ad-Hoc Committee – (McRae, Petersen)  

• None. 

 

7. FOWD and CWD 2x2 Ad-Hoc Committee – (McRae, Marx) 

• None. 

 

8. FOWD Field Services Center Ad-Hoc Committee – (Sarkovich, Petersen) 

• None. 

 

X. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

1. Maintenance Work Report 

• Report provided.  

 

2. Capital Projects Status Report 

• Report provided.  

 

3. Authorizations of Additional Funding 

• Report provided. 

 

4. Water Transfer Status Report 

• None. 

 

5. Claims Against District 

• Report provided. 

 

6. Employee Update 

• General Manager Gray provided an update. He noted that only the Junior Engineer 

will be joining the FOWD’s team. The other Engineer was promoted at his current 

job and decided to accept their offer. The Junior Engineer begins on January 27, 

2025.  
 

7. Water Issues – Update on Regional Involvement 

• None.  

 

8. Other 

• None. 

XI. PUBLIC COMMENT 

• None. 

 

President Petersen closed the open session meeting at 8:25 p.m. 

President Petersen opened the closed session meeting at 8:38 p.m. 

 

Page 14 of 185



Page 11 of 11 

XII. CLOSED SESSION PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTIONS 54954, 

54956 AND 54957 

 

1. Conference with legal counsel on existing litigation; Government Code Sections 

54954.5 and 54956.9; Citrus Heights Water District & Fair Oaks Water District v. San 

Juan Water District 

2. Conference on Anticipated Litigation; Government Code Section 54956.9(d) – two 

cases 

3. Public Employee Performance Evaluation Involving the General Manager; 

Government Code Sections 54954.5(e) and 54957 

President Petersen closed the closed session meeting at 10:50 p.m.  

President Petersen reopened the meeting to the public at 10:50 p.m. 

 

XIII. REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION 

• None. 

 

XIV. PUBLIC COMMENT 

• None. 

 

XV. ADJOURNMENT 

With no further business to come before the Board, President Petersen adjourned the 

meeting at 10:50 p.m. 

 

 

 

Page 15 of 185



 

 

January 21, 2025 

Staff Report Briefing Materials 

AGENDA ITEM III.2 

Accept and File Treasurer’s Report for the month of December 2024 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 16 of 185



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM III.2 

REGULAR Board Meeting January 21, 2025 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Chi Ha-Ly 

Date: January 13, 2025 

Subject: Accept and File Treasurer’s Report for the month of December 2024 

Recommendation: 

None. 

 

Discussion: 

Attached you will find the Treasurer’s report for the month of December 2024. 

 

Policy Implications: 

None. 

 

Fiscal Impact: 

None. 

 

Page 17 of 185



Page 18 of 185



FAIR OAKS WATER DISTRICT

Check Register

December 2024

Check Number Check Date Vendor Name Check Amount Description

General Expenses

51109 12/4/2024 A. TEICHERT & SON, INC. 1,607.75$           Sand & Aggregate

51110 12/4/2024 AFLAC 349.79                Aflac Premium

51111 12/4/2024 AVALON CUSTODIAL CARE 1,700.00             Janitorial Services

51112 12/4/2024 CUSTOMER 110.93                Customer Refund

51113 12/4/2024 COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO 126.70                Utilities

51114 12/4/2024 CORE & MAIN, LP. 20,380.83           Inventory Parts for Distribution System

51115 12/4/2024 ELEVATOR TECHNOLOGY, INC. 316.00                Elevator Maintenance

51116 12/4/2024 IRON MOUNTAIN RECORDS MANAGEMENT 364.20                Document Storage

51117 12/4/2024 INTEGRITY DATA INC. 38.20                  Dues & Subscription

51118 12/4/2024 STAFF 54.12                  Training/Seminars

51119 12/4/2024 OLD VILLAGE LANDSCAPING, INC. 655.00                District Site Maintenance

51120 12/4/2024 SMUD 726.07                Utilities

51121 12/4/2024 SACRAMENTO VALLEY ALARM SECURITY 55.74                  Security

51122 12/4/2024 VERIZON WIRELESS 351.84                Communications

51123 12/4/2024 SMUD 11,678.03           Utilities

51124 12/11/2024 AT&T MOBILITY 1,180.28             Communications

51125 12/11/2024 P G & E 326.37                Utilities

51126 12/11/2024 SWRCB-DWOCP 3,630.00             NPDES Permit

51127 12/11/2024 WASTE MANAGEMENT 670.45                Utilities

51128 12/11/2024 BUCKMASTER OFFICE SOLUTIONS 842.32                Printing Costs

51129 12/11/2024 COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO 1,524.00             Inspections

51130 12/11/2024 ELLIOTT HOMES INC 217.55                Customer Refund

51131 12/11/2024 FUSE 3 COMMUNICATIONS 7,192.60             IT Consulting

51132 12/11/2024 KASL CONSULTING ENGINEERS, INC. 14,819.50           Engineering Services-Northridge Well

51133 12/11/2024 CUSTOMER 104.92                Customer Refund

51134 12/11/2024 ULINE 822.80                Safety Supplies

51135 12/11/2024 WYJO SERVICES CORP. 1,273.80             Vehicle Maintenance

51137 12/18/2024 COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO 242.00                Inspections

51138 12/18/2024 COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO 126.70                Utilities

51139 12/18/2024 CUSTOMER 50.00                  Clothes Washer Rebate

51140 12/18/2024 CUSTOMER 350.00                Toilet Rebate

51141 12/18/2024 FUSE 3 COMMUNICATIONS 21,692.27           Computer Hardware/IT Consulting

Page 1 of 4
Page 19 of 185



Check Number Check Date Vendor Name Check Amount Description

51142 12/18/2024 STAFF 275.00                Safety Boots

51143 12/18/2024 HERC RENTALS 696.02                Rentals-New York Well

51144 12/18/2024 INTERSTATE ASSEMBLY SYSTEMS, INC. 5,707.67             Lift Gate

51145 12/18/2024 BOARD MEMBER 162.96                Travel Expense Reimbursement

51146 12/18/2024 PMKI REALTORS, LLC. 248.47                Customer Refund

51147 12/18/2024 CUSTOMER 175.00                Toilet Rebate

51148 12/18/2024 SACRAMENTO TRUCK CENTER 600.00                Vehicle Maintenance

51149 12/18/2024 WYJO SERVICES CORP. 2,729.39             Vehicle Repairs

51150 12/18/2024 TPX COMMUNICATIONS 6,366.05             Communications

51151 12/19/2024 FRANCHISE TAX BOARD 100.00                Wage Garnishment

51152 12/19/2024 MFS 529 SAVING PLAN 250.00                529 Education Fund

51154 12/27/2024 CUSTOMER 40.94                  Customer Refund

51155 12/27/2024 CARBON HEALTH MEDICAL GROUP OF CA PC 477.00                Physicals

51156 12/27/2024 CUSTOMER 175.00                Toilet Rebate

51157 12/27/2024 CUSTOMER 64.22                  Customer Refund

51158 12/27/2024 J FRANKO ELECTRIC, INC. 3,565.88             Wells/Pumps Repairs and Maintenance

51159 12/27/2024 STAFF 22.90                  Employee Recognition

51160 12/27/2024 MARK E. GARCIA 350.00                Toilet Rebate

51161 12/27/2024 MARK JAMISON 50.00                  Clothes Washer Rebate

51162 12/27/2024 STAFF 58.00                  Training/Seminars

51163 12/27/2024 PURCHASE POWER 201.05                Office Supplies/Office Equipment

51164 12/27/2024 SMUD 2,981.59             Utilities

51165 12/27/2024 STANDARD INSURANCE COMPANY 868.33                Disability Insurance

51166 12/27/2024 SCHREDER & BRANDT MFG, INC. 3,829.78             Construction Meter Rental Refund

51167 12/27/2024 FRANCHISE TAX BOARD 100.00                Wage Garnishment

51168 12/27/2024 MFS 529 SAVING PLAN 250.00                529 Education Fund

51169 12/30/2024 CORE & MAIN LP 874.01                Inventory Parts

51170 12/31/2024 PETTY CASH 75.00                  Replenish Petty Cash

51171 12/31/2024 HIDDEN TEMPLE MEDIA 5,500.00             Conservation Outreach

51172 12/31/2024 SMUD 8,269.81             Utilities

51173 12/31/2024 VERIZON WIRELESS 351.10                Communications

51174 12/31/2024 WYJO SERVICES CORP. 826.14                Vehicle Maintenance/Equipment Repair

51175 12/31/2024 SMUD 2,968.86             Utilities

* 50791 (VOIDED) 6/19/2024 CUSTOMER (927.61)               Stale-Dated Check

REMIT000000000004394 12/4/2024 PACE SUPPLY CORP. 3,184.20             Damages/Inventory Parts

REMIT000000000004395 12/4/2024 PACE SUPPLY CORP. 138.44                Project Parts

REMIT000000000004396 12/4/2024 CAPITOL BARRICADE, INC. 949.28                Tools

Page 2 of 4
Page 20 of 185



Check Number Check Date Vendor Name Check Amount Description

REMIT000000000004397 12/4/2024 STREAMLINE 375.00                Website Maintenance

REMIT000000000004398 12/4/2024 GRAINGER 144.20                Uniforms

REMIT000000000004399 12/4/2024 HUNT & SONS, LLC. 1,527.10             Gas & Oil

REMIT000000000004400 12/4/2024 PACE SUPPLY CORP. 374.10                Project Parts

REMIT000000000004401 12/5/2024 ELLISON,SCHNEIDER, HARRIS & DONLAN, LLP. 6,585.00             Legal Fees

REMIT000000000004402 12/5/2024 KRONICK MOSKOVITZ TIEDEMANN & GIRARD 11,237.30           Legal Fees

REMIT000000000004403 12/11/2024 BSK ASSOCIATES 897.00                Water Testing/Sampling

REMIT000000000004404 12/11/2024 HUNT & SONS, LLC. 1,060.09             Gas & Oil

REMIT000000000004406 12/11/2024 SIERRA CHEMICAL COMPANY 766.32                Chemical

REMIT000000000004408 12/18/2024 BSK ASSOCIATES 253.00                Water Testing/Sampling

REMIT000000000004409 12/18/2024 HUNT & SONS, LLC. 1,999.50             Gas & Oil

REMIT000000000004410 12/18/2024 PBI ENGINEERING CONSULTING 6,444.65             T-Main Replacement

REMIT000000000004411 12/18/2024 NEPTUNE TECHNOLOGY GROUP, INC. 159.47                Meter Parts

REMIT000000000004413 12/27/2024 BSK ASSOCIATES 276.00                Water Testing/Sampling

REMIT000000000004414 12/27/2024 BURKETT'S OFFICE FURNISHINGS AND SUPPLIES 226.22                Office Supplies 

REMIT000000000004415 12/27/2024 HUNT & SONS, LLC. 1,280.61             Gas & Oil

REMIT000000000004416 12/27/2024 NEPTUNE TECHNOLOGY GROUP, INC. 10,989.57           Meter Parts/AMR's

REMIT000000000004417 12/27/2024 SIERRA CHEMICAL COMPANY 548.00                Chemical

REMIT000000000004418 12/27/2024 WIENHOFF ASSOC. CALIFORNIA 1,290.00             Employee Screening

REMIT000000000004419 12/30/2024 I.M.P.A.C. GOVERNMENT SERVICES 13,029.94           See Cal-Card Statements Summary for Details

REMIT000000000004420 12/31/2024 CLARK PEST CONTROL 117.00                Pest Services

REMIT000000000004421 12/31/2024 GRAINGER 452.29                Uniforms

REMIT000000000004422 12/31/2024 PACE SUPPLY CORP. 4,222.83             Minor Main Upgrades/Project Parts/Press Reducing

REMIT000000000004423 12/31/2024 CRAYON SOFTWARE EXPERTS, LLC. 2,360.41             Azure Overages

WDL000006704 12/4/2024 IRS EFTPS 24,558.20           Federal Payroll Taxes

WDL000006705 12/4/2024 EDD 4,854.48             State Payroll Taxes

WDL000006713 12/12/2024 PERS - RETIREMENT 18,032.48           Retirement Contributions

WDL000006715 12/18/2024 EDD 5,152.61             State Payroll Taxes

WDL000006716 12/18/2024 IRS/EFTPS 26,041.96           Federal Payroll Taxes

WDL000006724 12/31/2024 IRS EFTPS 25,110.63           Federal Payroll Taxes

WDL000006725 12/31/2024 EDD 4,945.76             State Payroll Taxes

WDL000006726 12/27/2024 PERS - RETIREMENT 18,386.62           Retirement Contributions

Total General Expenses 339,833.58$       

General Warrants

51136 12/16/2024 COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO-VOTER REG. 43,388.64$         Election Expense

Page 3 of 4
Page 21 of 185



Check Number Check Date Vendor Name Check Amount Description

51153 12/23/2024 GUTIERREZ ASSOCIATES 25,052.00           Architectural Services-Corp. Yard

REMIT000000000004407 12/16/2024 NEPTUNE TECHNOLOGY GROUP, INC. 79,762.27           Meters/Registers

REMIT000000000004412 12/23/2024 TRILLIUM PUMPS USA, INC. 186,400.81         New York Well Equipment

Total General Warrants 334,603.72$       

Service Charges and Fees

WDL000006717 12/2/2024 US BANK 115.20$              Service Charges

REMIT000000000004405 12/11/2024 INVOICE CLOUD, INC. 2,137.30             Invoice Cloud Fees

WDL000006718 12/13/2024 US BANK 1,995.94             Analysis Fees

WDL000006729 12/31/2024 INVOICE CLOUD, INC. 69.48                  Invoice Cloud/Payment Tech (Fees) Settled 

Total Service Charges and Fees 4,317.92$           

Total Expenses 678,755.22$       

Page 4 of 4
Page 22 of 185



 

 

January 21, 2025 

Staff Report Briefing Materials 

AGENDA ITEM III.3 

File Investment Report for the month of November 2024 

  

Page 23 of 185



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM III.3 

REGULAR Board Meeting on January 21, 2025 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Chi Ha-Ly 

Date: January 13, 2025 

Subject: File Investment Report for the month of November 2024 

Recommendation: 

None. 

 

Discussion: 

Attached are the November 2024 LAIF monthly statement and LAIF monthly performance 

report.  The December 2024 LAIF monthly performance report is not available for 

inclusion this month due to the timing of the Board meeting.  The December 2024 LAIF 

monthly statement and LAIF monthly performance report will be included in the February 

2025 Board Consent Calendar. 

The District’s cash flow is sufficient to meet the next six months of budgeted District 

expenses (Govt. Code 53646(b)(3)).  The District’s investment portfolio is in compliance 

with the investment policy (Govt. Code 53646(b)(2)). 

  

Policy Implications: 

None. 

 

Fiscal Impact: 

None. 

 

Page 24 of 185



Page 25 of 185



November 4.477
October 4.518

September 4.575
August 4.579

July 4.516
June 4.480

(2)LAIF Apportionment Rate : 4.71
(2) LAIF Earnings Ratio : 0.00012912073474208

(1)* LAIF Administrative Cost : 0.26
(1) LAIF Fair Value Factor : 1.002061084
(1)PMIA Daily : 4.58
(1)PMIA Quarter to Date : 4.56
(1)PMIA Average Life : 231

Treasuries
55.96%

Agencies
24.20%

Certificates of 
Deposit/Bank Notes

8.96%

Time 
Deposits

3.51%

Commercial
Paper
6.63%

Corporate 
Bonds
0.61%

Loans
0.13%

Notes: The apportionment rate includes interest earned on the CalPERS Supplemental Pension Payment pursuant to Government Code 20825 
(c)(1) and interest earned on the Wildfire Fund loan pursuant to Public Utility Code 3288 (a). 

*The percentage of administrative cost equals the total administrative cost divided by the quarterly interest earnings. The law provides that 
administrative costs are not to exceed 5% of quarterly EARNINGS of the fund. However, if the 13-week Daily Treasury Bill Rate on the last day of 
the fiscal year is below 1%, then administrative costs shall not exceed 8% of quarterly EARNINGS of the fund for the subsequent fiscal year. 

Source:
(1) State of California, Office of the Treasurer
(2) State of California, Office of the Controller

PMIA Average Monthly 
Effective Yields(1)

PMIA/LAIF Performance Report
as of 12/18/24

Daily rates are now available here.  View PMIA Daily Rates

Quarterly Performance
Quarter Ended 09/30/24

Chart does not include $1,290,000.00 in mortgages, which equates to 0.001%. Percentages may not total 100% due to rounding.

Pooled Money Investment Account
Monthly Portfolio Composition (1)

11/30/24
$146.8 billion

Page 26 of 185



 

 

January 21, 2025 

Staff Report Briefing Materials 

AGENDA ITEM III.4 

Accept and File Monthly Financial Expense Report for the month of December 2024 

 

Page 27 of 185



 

 

AGENDA ITEM III.4 

REGULAR Board Meeting January 21, 2025 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Chi Ha-Ly 

Date: January 16, 2025 

Subject: Accept and File Financial Expense Report for the month of December 

2024 

Recommendation: 

None at this time.  Monthly financial expenses presented for informational purposes. 

 

Discussion: 

Attached is the preliminary financial report for the month of December 2024.  The 

numbers may change as staff reconciles to close the year.  Staff will bring a revised 

version for Board approval if there are changes to this report. 

 

As of  December 2024, the District has 10.89% of remaining adjusted budget.   

 

This report provides a quick snapshot of the operating expenses incurred by the District 

and does not include items that are capitalized (i.e. costs of construction jobs, fixed 

assets).  The capital projects are reported separately under the “Capital Projects Status 

Report.”  

 

Policy Implications: 

None as a result of recommended action. 

 

Fiscal Impact: 

None as a result of recommended action. 

Page 28 of 185



December
Actual

YTD
Actual

Original Annual
Budget

Adjusted Annual
Budget

Remaining
Adjusted Budget

% Remaining
Adjusted Budget

Labor

Salaries and Wages
Salaries $211,616 $2,857,204 $3,301,100 $3,301,100 $443,896 13.45%

Salaries and Wages Subtotal $211,616 $2,857,204 $3,301,100 $3,301,100 $443,896 13.45%

Benefits and Insurance
Auto Fringe Benefits $300 $3,600 $3,600 $3,600 0.00%
Dental Insurance 34,552 44,900 44,900 10,348 23.05%
FICA 12,337 176,590 204,700 204,700 28,110 13.73%
Medicare 3,167 42,290 47,900 47,900 5,610 11.71%
Health Insurance 746,301 829,500 829,500 83,200 10.03%
Disability Insurance 932 10,811 13,200 13,200 2,389 18.10%
Life Insurance* 8,678 8,500 8,678 0 0.00%
Pension Plan 21,325 573,282 620,900 620,900 47,618 7.67%
Deferred Compensation** 45,650 41,400 45,650 0.00%
Unemployment Insurance 15,000 15,000 15,000 100.00%
Vision Care 8,342 9,400 9,400 1,058 11.26%
Worker's Compensation 61,647 83,000 83,000 21,353 25.73%

Benefits & Insurance Subtotal $38,060 $1,711,742 $1,922,000 $1,926,428 $214,686 11.14%

Salaries & Benefits Capitalized ($36,608) ($389,491) ($803,200) ($803,200) ($413,709) 51.51%
Salaries & Benefits to Damages (120) (87,335) (11,600) (11,600) 75,735 -652.89%

Labor Total $212,949 $4,092,121 $4,408,300 $4,412,728 $320,607 7.27%

Materials and Services

Water Supply
Surface Water Supply, SJWD** $2,226,450 $2,217,600 $2,226,500 $50 0.00%
Chemicals 1,314 13,080 32,600 32,600 19,520 59.88%
Division of Drinking Water Annual Permit** 64,482 64,000 64,500 18 0.03%
Energy Cost, Wells 23,936 199,480 424,300 424,300 224,820 52.99%
Energy Cost, Other** 426 3,159 3,100 3,300 141 4.27%
Testing & Sampling** 1,490 33,247 31,000 33,900 653 1.93%
SCADA Support & Maintenance 1,739 10,000 10,000 8,261 82.61%
Cathodic Protection 3,658 4,000 4,000 342 8.55%
Hydrant Testing & Flushing 3,000 3,000 3,000 100.00%

Water Supply Subtotal $27,166 $2,545,295 $2,789,600 $2,802,100 $256,805 9.16%

District Facilities and Maintenance & Repairs
Wells Repairs and Upgrades $4,827 $14,432 $24,000 $24,000 $9,568 39.87%
Skyway Tank Inspection 4,000 5,000 5,000 1,000 20.00%
Skyway Booster #1 Inspection and Repair 5,000 5,000 5,000 100.00%
Annual Pump Efficiency Testing 2,750 5,000 5,000 2,250 45.00%
Tank Repairs and Maintenance 5,785 15,000 15,000 9,215 61.44%
District Site Maintenance 862 19,582 20,000 20,000 418 2.09%
Janitorial 1,700 21,801 23,000 23,000 1,199 5.21%
Elevator Maintenance* 316 8,037 9,500 10,125 2,088 20.62%
Security Costs 56 3,789 4,200 4,200 411 9.79%

District Facilities Maint. Subtotal $7,760 $80,176 $110,700 $111,325 $31,149 27.98%

Vehicle and Equipment Maintenance
Vehicle Maintenance $2,457 $15,454 $16,500 $16,500 $1,046 6.34%
Vehicle Repairs* 3,432 15,776 15,000 16,000 224 1.40%
Other Equipment Maintenance** 13,906 15,500 17,500 3,594 20.54%
Other Equipment Repair** 324 15,857 15,000 20,000 4,143 20.71%

Vehicle & Equip. Maint. Subtotal $6,213 $60,994 $62,000 $70,000 $9,006 12.87%

Insurance
Auto and General Liability Insurance** $169,434 $115,000 $169,500 $66 0.04%
Bonding 1,500 1,600 1,600 100 6.25%
Property Insurance** 52,767 45,000 52,800 33 0.06%

Insurance Subtotal $223,701 $161,600 $223,900 $199 0.09%

Printing and Postage
Advertisements & Legal Notices $2 $1,378 $5,000 $5,000 $3,622 72.44%
Online Bill Pay/Payment Processing** 2,207 30,183 28,000 32,200 2,017 6.26%
Customer Bill Printing 10,820 17,500 17,500 6,680 38.17%
Customer Bill Postage* 1,168 43,668 43,000 43,700 32 0.07%
Customer Collection Postage 7,000 7,000 7,000 0.00%
General Postage 543 1,000 1,000 457 45.70%
General Printing 886 1,800 1,800 914 50.78%
Collection Expense Printing 584 900 900 316 35.12%

Printing and Postage Subtotal $3,377 $95,062 $104,200 $109,100 $14,038 12.87%

Office Expense and Other
Office Equipment Rental $605 $700 $700 $95 13.59%
Office Supplies 1,232 14,624 17,000 17,000 2,376 13.97%
Office Equipment less than $500 2,273 3,000 3,000 727 24.23%
Office Furniture less than $500 1,149 2,000 2,000 851 42.57%
Office Equipment Maintenance 500 500 500 100.00%
Office Equipment Maintenance Agreements 883 14,015 18,100 18,100 4,085 22.57%

Office Expense & Other Subtotal $2,115 $32,666 $41,300 $41,300 $8,634 20.91%

Professional Services
Annual Audit Fees $20,979 $22,000 $22,000 $1,021 4.64%
Actuarial Services for Pension Calculation 700 800 800 100 12.50%

FAIR OAKS WATER DISTRICT
Company Consolidation

For the Twelve Months Ending Tuesday, December 31, 2024

Page 1 of 3 Report Processed:  1/17/2025
9:58 AM

Page 29 of 185



December
Actual

YTD
Actual

Original Annual
Budget

Adjusted Annual
Budget

Remaining
Adjusted Budget

% Remaining
Adjusted Budget

Meter Testing Service* 6,357 5,000 6,800 443 6.52%
Dues and Subscription 73 45,228 52,000 52,000 6,772 13.02%
Grant Application 5,000 5,000 5,000 100.00%
Hydraulic Model Update 11,000 11,000 11,000 100.00%
Urban Water Management Plan 15,000 15,000 15,000 100.00%
Emergency Response Plan 500 500 500 100.00%
Legal Fees 17,822 103,704 150,000 150,000 46,296 30.86%
Coop. Trans. Pipeline O&M 3,855 7,000 7,000 3,145 44.93%
Website Design and Public Outreach 3,441 5,000 5,000 1,559 31.18%
Regional Support 102,796 108,000 108,000 5,204 4.82%
Banking Fees 2,224 29,041 36,000 36,000 6,959 19.33%
IT Consulting Service 10,746 106,964 123,500 123,500 16,536 13.39%
Annual IT Audit 5,600 5,600 5,600 100.00%
Answering Service 181 2,112 2,500 2,500 388 15.52%
Other Professional Fees* 463 36,984 150,000 169,589 132,606 78.19%

Professional Fees Subtotal $31,509 $462,161 $698,900 $720,289 $258,129 35.84%

System Maintenance/Repairs
Aggregate/Sand/Cutback** $1,799 $31,586 $25,000 $32,500 $914 2.81%
Paving 62,793 75,000 75,000 12,207 16.28%
Equipment and Tool Rental** 339 1,790 1,500 2,500 710 28.40%
General Maint., Supplies & Consumables 1,365 14,201 15,000 15,000 799 5.33%
Distribution Repairs** 639 31,400 25,000 39,500 8,100 20.51%
Distribution System Maintenance Programs 6,659 7,000 7,000 341 4.87%
T-Main Repairs 4,593 25,000 25,000 20,407 81.63%
Damages*** 517 381,367 25,000 389,800 8,433 2.16%
Backflow Testing and Supplies** 983 5,746 4,800 5,800 54 0.93%
Meter Downsize Repairs/Upgrades 178 600 600 422 70.38%
Inventory Replenishment 10,000 10,000 10,000 100.00%
Gas & Oil 5,867 50,214 56,000 56,000 5,786 10.33%
Equipment & Tools less than $500 4,340 11,589 12,000 12,000 411 3.42%
Safety, Signs & Cones 1,042 12,960 13,000 13,000 40 0.31%

System Maint./Repairs Subtotal $16,892 $615,075 $294,900 $683,700 $68,624 10.04%

Fees
State and County Fees $501 $1,300 $1,300 $799 61.42%
Air Quality** 10,993 10,900 11,000 7 0.07%
NPDES Permit 3,630 3,630 4,000 4,000 370 9.25%
Haz-mat Disposal 1,111 2,000 2,000 889 44.47%
Haz-mat Permit 4,045 6,900 6,900 2,855 41.38%

Fees Subtotal $3,630 $20,280 $25,100 $25,200 $4,920 19.52%

Utilities
Telephone/Communication $8,249 $96,496 $101,900 $101,900 $5,404 5.30%
District Site Utilities 3,513 32,336 36,500 36,500 4,164 11.41%

Utilities Subtotal $11,762 $128,832 $138,400 $138,400 $9,568 6.91%

Information Technology
Computer Software Maint. & Agreements $6,571 $134,511 $140,500 $140,500 $5,989 4.26%
Computer Hardware <$500 3,360 3,413 5,000 5,000 1,587 31.74%
Computer Software <$500 1,000 1,000 1,000 100.00%

Information Technology Subtotal $9,931 $137,924 $146,500 $146,500 $8,576 5.85%

Water Effeciency
Conservation Outreach $5,500 $10,853 $22,000 $22,000 $11,147 50.67%
Cons. Landscape Irrigation Review 214 214 2,000 2,000 1,786 89.31%
Conservation Water Waste 39 500 500 461 92.21%
Conservation Large Landscape 322 2,000 2,000 1,678 83.89%
Conservation Toilet Rebate Program 600 3,385 10,000 10,000 6,615 66.15%
Conservation Toilet Rebate Program (Reimb.) 450 2,550 7,500 7,500 4,950 66.00%
Washing Machine Rebate Program 100 300 500 500 200 40.00%
Conservation Internal Review 1,000 1,000 1,000 100.00%

Conservation Subtotal $6,864 $17,663 $45,500 $45,500 $27,837 61.18%

Training & Uniforms
DMV/Physicals $1,767 $5,049 $8,500 $8,500 $3,451 40.60%
Employee Recognition Program 1,460 8,424 11,000 11,000 2,577 23.42%
Training, Travel and Expenses 1,289 11,610 20,000 20,000 8,390 41.95%
Uniforms 748 10,135 12,800 12,800 2,665 20.82%

Training & Uniforms Subtotal $5,263 $35,218 $52,300 $52,300 $17,082 32.66%

Board
Election Expense $43,389 $43,389 $45,400 $45,400 $2,011 4.43%
Director's Fees $1,300 $8,900 $12,500 $12,500 $3,600 28.80%
Miscellaneous Board Expenses 92 1,570 2,500 2,500 930 37.22%
Travel and Seminars 138 163 10,000 10,000 9,837 98.37%

Board Subtotal $44,919 $54,021 $70,400 $70,400 $16,379 23.27%

Materials & Services Total $177,401 $4,509,066 $4,741,400 $5,240,014 $730,948 13.95%

GRAND TOTAL $390,350 $8,601,187 $9,149,700 $9,652,742 $1,051,556 10.89%

FAIR OAKS WATER DISTRICT
Company Consolidation

For the Twelve Months Ending Tuesday, December 31, 2024

Page 2 of 3 Report Processed:  1/17/2025
9:59 AM

Page 30 of 185



December
Actual

YTD
Actual

Original Annual
Budget

Adjusted Annual
Budget

Remaining
Adjusted Budget

% Remaining
Adjusted Budget

CONTINGENCY FUND $1,078 $190,313 $200,000 $200,000 $9,687 4.84%

*The Board approved the following Project Fund to be 
carried forward from 2023 to 2024 at the January 16, 
2024 Regular Board Meeting.

$19,589.38 from Professional Services.
$1,000 from Vehicle Repairs.
$1,800 from Meter Testing Services.
$625 from Elevator Maintenance.

**Contingency Fund was used as follows:
   $500 was transferred to SWRCB-Division of Drinking 
Water Annual Permit - Board approved on January 16, 
2024.
   $4,250 was transferred to Deferred Compensation - 
Board approved on January 16, 2024.
   $29,616 was transferred to Hazel Avenue Project 
#2004 - Board approved on March 18, 2024.
   $41,969 was transferred to Gum Ranch Unit 2 
Project #1607 - Board approved on March 18, 2024.
   $7,800 was transferred to Property Insurance - Board 
approved on August 19, 2024.
   $2,500 was transferred to Aggregate/Sand/Gravel - 
Board approved on August 19, 2024.  
   $5,000 was transferred to Aggregate/Sand/Gravel - 
Board approved on September 18, 2024.  
   $1,000 was transferred to Equipment & Tool Rental - 
Board approved on August 19, 2024.
   $7,500 and $7,000 were transferred to Distribution 
Repairs - Board approved on August 19, 2024 and 
November 18, 2024, respectively.
   $2,000 was transferred to Other Equipment 
Maintenance (E24EMEM)- Board approved on 
September 16, 2024.
   $5,000 was transferred to Other Equipment Repair - 
Board approved on September 16, 2024.
   $2,000 was transferred to Other Maintenance 
Equipment (A24MEOM) - Board approved on 
September 16, 2024.
   $100 was transferred to Fees - Air Quality (E24FEAQ 
- Board approved on October 21, 2024.
   $8,900 was transferred to Surface Water Supply, 
SJWD (E24WSWAT) - Board approved on October 21, 
2024.
   $54,500 was transferred to Auto and General Liability 
Insurancel - Board approved on November 18, 2024.  
   $4,200 was transferred to Online Bill Pay/Payment 
Processing - Board approved on November 18, 2024.  
   $2,900 was transferred to Water Supply Testing & 
Sampling - Board approved on November 18, 2024.  
   $7,000 was transferred to Distribution Repairs - 
Board approved on November 18, 2024.  
   $1,000 was transferred to Backflow Testing & 
Supplies - Board approved on November 18, 2024.  
   $200 was transferred to Water Supply Energy Cost, 
Other - Board approved on November 18, 2024.  
   $178 was transferred to Life Insurance - Board 
approved on December 16, 2024.  
   $200 was transferred to Computer Hardware - Board 
approved on December 16, 2024.  
   $700 was transferred to Customer Bill Postage - 
Board approved on December 16, 2024.  

***Rerserve Fund was used as follows:
   $325,000 was transferred to Damages for the 
Transmission Main Break Repair on Pershing Ave. and 
Chestnut Ave.- Board approved on May 20, 2024.  
FOWD received $216,339.85 from the insurance 
company on 9/11/2024 for this project.
Upon reconciliation of the damages project $39,799.85 
was allocated to damages and $176,540 was returned 
to reserves.

FAIR OAKS WATER DISTRICT
Company Consolidation

For the Twelve Months Ending Tuesday, December 31, 2024

Page 3 of 3 Report Processed:  1/17/2025
9:59 AM

Page 31 of 185



 

 

January 21, 2025 

Staff Report Briefing Materials 

AGENDA ITEM III.5 

Approval of Warrants 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 32 of 185



Page 33 of 185



Page 34 of 185



Page 35 of 185



Page 36 of 185



Page 37 of 185



Page 38 of 185



Page 39 of 185



Page 40 of 185



Page 41 of 185



Page 42 of 185



Page 43 of 185



Page 44 of 185



Page 45 of 185



Page 46 of 185



Page 47 of 185



Page 48 of 185



Page 49 of 185



 

 

January 21, 2025 

Staff Report Briefing Materials 

AGENDA ITEM III.6 

Approval of Cal-Card Statements for the month of December 2024 

 

  

Page 50 of 185



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM III.6 

REGULAR Board Meeting on January 21, 2025 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Tom R. Gray 

Date: January 13, 2025 

Subject: Approval of Cal-Card Statement 

Recommendation: 

None. 

 

Discussion: 

Attached you will find the Cal-Card statement summary for the period ending December 

23, 2024. 

 

Policy Implications: 

None.  

 

Fiscal Impact: 

None. 

 

Page 51 of 185



Cal-Card Statement

Cal-Card Summary of Charges

Closing Statement Ending December 23, 2024

Date Merchant Name Amount Description Personnel

11/21/2024 Home Depot 87.50$          Rentals - Damage Protection Staff

11/21/2024 Home Depot 251.58          Rentals - Damage Protection Staff

11/22/2024 Staples 0.62              Office Supplies (Rewards Applied) Staff

11/22/2024 AICPA 552.51          Trainings/Seminars Staff

11/23/2024 Dickies 192.28          Uniforms Staff

11/24/2024 Amazon 39.51            Office Supplies Staff

11/26/2024 Nespresso 54.00            Kitchen Supplies Staff

11/26/2024 Sandbaggy.Com 969.75          Maintenance Supplies Staff

11/27/2024 FedEx 55.74            Shipping Cost Staff

11/27/2024 Ace Hardware 751.02          Tools Staff

11/27/2024 CA-NV Section, AWWA 400.00          Trainings/Seminars Staff

11/28/2024 ULINE 752.80          Tools Staff

11/28/2024 Been Verified 58.48            Background Check General Manager

12/1/2024 Backgrounds Online 40.50            Background Check Staff

12/2/2024 CA-NV Section, AWWA (20.00)           Trainings/Seminars Staff

12/2/2024 USPS 438.00          Customer Bill Postage Staff

12/2/2024 Indeed Jobs 2.01              Recruitment Staff

12/2/2024 County of Sacramento/Kiefer Landfill 45.00            District Site Maintenance Staff

12/2/2024 County of Sacramento/Kiefer Landfill 45.00            District Site Maintenance Staff

12/3/2024 Home Depot 73.58            Maintenance Supplies Staff

12/3/2024 USPS 730.00          Customer Bill Postage Staff

12/4/2024 USABlueBook 155.77          Sampling/Testing Staff

12/4/2024 New Answernet, Inc. 181.00          Answering Service Staff

12/5/2024 Target 69.22            Holiday Lunch - Employee Recognition Staff

12/5/2024 Home Depot 204.24          Tools Staff

12/5/2024 Onxmaps.Com 34.99            Dues and Subscriptions General Manager

12/6/2024 Home Depot 155.44          Tools Staff

12/6/2024 Government Finance Officers Association 199.00          Trainings/Seminars Staff

12/7/2024 FedEx 56.90            Shipping Cost Staff

12/7/2024 Staples 0.72              Office Supplies (Rewards Applied) Staff

12/10/2024 Staples 0.12              Office Supplies (Rewards Applied) Staff

12/10/2024 Sam's Club 160.09          Kitchen Supplies Staff

12/10/2024 Sam's Club 99.48            Holiday Lunch - Employee Recognition Staff

12/10/2024 Sam's Club 143.70          Employee Recognition Staff

Page 1 of 2

Page 52 of 185



Date Merchant Name Amount Description Personnel

12/10/2024 Placer Equipment Rentals 191.38          Sand/Aggregate Staff

12/10/2024 Pollardwater.Com 254.09          Tools Staff

12/10/2024 Grainger 99.36            Uniforms Staff

12/11/2024 Ace Hardware 19.38            Maintenance Supplies Staff

12/11/2024 American Water Works Association 213.79          Water Audits & Loss Staff

12/11/2024 Deluxe 154.06          Office Supplies Staff

12/11/2024 Wal-Mart 76.97            Holiday Lunch - Employee Recognition Staff

12/11/2024 Costco 29.68            Holiday Lunch - Employee Recognition Staff

12/11/2024 Five Below 72.01            Employee Recognition Staff

12/11/2024 Ace Hardware 268.30          Tools Staff

12/11/2024 Ace Hardware 268.30          Tools Staff

12/12/2024 Super Quick Store 3.73              Holiday Lunch - Employee Recognition Staff

12/12/2024 Dickies 192.27          Uniforms Staff

12/12/2024 Taquero Feliz 721.00          Holiday Lunch - Employee Recognition Staff

12/12/2024 Staples 514.81          Toner Staff

12/12/2024 Amazon 13.99            Office Supplies Staff

12/12/2024 Target 72.84            Holiday Lunch - Employee Recognition Staff

12/12/2024 Red Wing Shoes 275.00          Safety Boots Staff

12/12/2024 Home Depot 32.64            Holiday Lunch - Employee Recognition Staff

12/13/2024 Industrialsafety.Com 73.55            Uniforms Staff

12/13/2024 World Market 115.70          Employee Recognition Staff

12/16/2024 Ace Hardware 27.11            Maintenance Supplies Staff

12/16/2024 Batteries Plus 29.07            Maintenance Supplies Staff

12/17/2024 County of Sacramento 983.01          Backflow Testing Supplies Staff

12/17/2024 Delish Pizza 92.24            Board Meeting Meals Staff

12/19/2024 Staples 82.08            Toner Staff

12/19/2024 Sacramento Battery Co. 317.93          Madison Well-Generator Battery Staff

12/20/2024 Brake Masters 81.12            Vehicle Maintenance Staff

12/20/2024 Amazon 39.46            Office Supplies Staff

12/20/2024 America's Tire 702.43          Vehicle Repair Staff

12/21/2024 Target 32.09            Kitchen Supplies Staff

TOTAL 13,029.94$   

Page 2 of 2

Page 53 of 185



 

 

January 21, 2025 

Staff Report Briefing Materials 

AGENDA ITEM III.7 

Accept and File Board Expense Report for the month of December 2024 

 

  

Page 54 of 185



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM III.7 

REGULAR Board Meeting on January 21, 2025 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Chi Ha-Ly 

Date: January 14, 2025 

Subject: Approval of Board Expense Report for the month of December 2024 

Recommendation: 

None. 

 

Discussion: 

Attached you will find the Board Expense Report for the month of December 2024. 

 

Policy Implications: 

None as a result of recommended action. 

 

Fiscal Impact: 

None as a result of recommended action. 

 

Page 55 of 185



Board of Directors
Expense Reimbursement Summary

Monthly Activity - December 2024

Name Meeting Date Description Date Paid Compensation

Reimbursed 

Expenses District Expenses

Dolby

12/16/2024 Regular Board Meeting 12/26/2024 100.00$             -$                   -$                      

100.00$             -$                   -$                      

Marx

9/12/2024 RWA Board Meeting 12/12/2024 100.00$             -$                   -$                      

9/16/2024 Regular Board Meeting 12/12/2024 100.00               -                     -                        

10/10/2024 SGA Board Meeting 12/12/2024 100.00               -                     -                        

10/21/2024 Regular Board Meeting 12/12/2024 100.00               -                     -                        

10/28/2024 Special Board Meeting 12/12/2024 100.00               -                     -                        

11/14/2024 RWA Board Meeting 12/12/2024 100.00               -                     -                        

11/18/2024 Regular Board Meeting 12/12/2024 100.00               -                     -                        

12/12/2024 SGA Board Meeting 12/26/2024 100.00               -                     -                        

Travel Reimbursement 12/18/2024 -                    162.96                -                        

800.00$             162.96$              -$                      

McRae

11/20/2024 SJWD Board Meeting 12/26/2024 100.00$             -$                   -$                      

12/16/2024 Regular Board Meeting 12/26/2024 100.00               -                     -                        

200.00$             -$                   -$                      

Petersen

12/16/2024 Regular Board Meeting 12/26/2024 100.00$             -$                   -$                      

100.00$             -$                   -$                      

Sarkovich

12/16/2024 Regular Board Meeting 12/26/2024 100.00$             -$                   -$                      

100.00$             -$                   -$                      

Page 1 of 2
Page 56 of 185



Board of Directors
Expense Reimbursement Summary

Monthly Activity - December 2024

December 2024 RECAP

Name Meeting Month Meetings Attended (Paid) Month Paid Compensation

Reimbursed 

Expenses District Expenses

Dolby December 1 December 100.00$             -$                   -$                      

Marx Sept.-Dec. 8 December 800.00               162.96                -                        

McRae Nov./Dec. 2 December 200.00               -                     -                        

Petersen December 1 December 100.00               -                     -                        

Sarkovich December 1 December 100.00               -                     -                        

TOTAL 13 1,300.00$          162.96$              -$                      

Year-to-Date RECAP

Name Meetings Attended (Paid) Compensation

Reimbursed 

Expenses District Expenses

Dolby 15 1,500.00$          -$                   -$                      

Marx 26 2,600.00            162.96                -                        

McRae 17 1,700.00            -                     -                        

Petersen 16 1,600.00            -                     -                        

Sarkovich 15 1,500.00            -                     -                        

TOTAL 89 8,900.00$          162.96$              -$                      

Page 2 of 2
Page 57 of 185



January 21, 2025 

Staff Report Briefing Materials 

AGENDA ITEM V.1 

Discussion and direction on the process for the appointment 

of the Director to represent FOWD Division 2 

Page 58 of 185



AGENDA ITEM V.1 

Regular Board Meeting January 21, 2025 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Tom R. Gray 

Date: January 16, 2025 

Subject: Discussion and direction on the process for the appointment of the 

Director to represent FOWD Division 2 

Recommendation: 

1. Interview all applicants that meet the minimum requirements to fill the open seat

on the Fair Oaks Water District (FOWD) Board of Directors that applied by the

deadline set by the FOWD Board during a public meeting held on December 16,

2024.

• Verify that all selected applicants are registered to vote at the address

provided on the application.

2. Invite all applicants, who were verified as registered to vote at the address

provided on the application, to be interviewed by the FOWD Board of Directors

(BOD) at a Special Board Meeting scheduled for Monday January 27, 2025

starting at 5:30 PM.

3. FOWD Board Present call for a Special Board Meeting of the FOWD Board of

Directors for Monday January 27, 2025 starting at 5:30 PM.

Discussion: 

The FOWD currently has an opening on the Board of Directors due to the resignation of 

the Division 2 Director effective December 17, 2024. The remaining FOWD Board 

Members unanimously voted to fill the vacancy by appointment. The FOWD Board must 

make an appointment to fill the vacancy by February 14, 2025. 

• On December 16, 2025 the FOWD BOD approved a Public Notice of the vacancy

during a public meeting. The Public Notice has a deadline for applications of

January 15, 2025.

• On December 17, 2024 the approved Public Notice was posted on the FOWD

Website, at the Fair Oaks Library, and at the Fair Oaks Historic Society.

Status Update: 

As of the Wednesday January 15, 2025 deadline for application submittal, five 

applications were received. The following table provides a summary of the applications 

received. 

Page 59 of 185



 

 

 

 

Table 1 – Applicant list 

Name Date Received D2 Address Verified Application Complete 

Leon Corcos 12-19-2024 yes yes 

John Briggs 12-20-2024 yes yes 

Terry Erlewine 01-02-2025 yes yes 

Susannah 

Martin 
01-06-2025 yes yes 

George 

Babcock 
01-06-2025 yes yes 

Attachments: 

• Copies of all applications received. 

• Copy of related prior FOWD Staff Reports. 

• Copy of County Elections Department publication titled “How to Fill a Vacancy.” 

Schedule: 

The FOWD Board of Directors must make the appointment to fill the Division 2 vacancy by 

February 14, 2025. 

Policy Implications: 

None because of the recommended action. 

Fiscal Impact: 

None because of the recommended action. 

Page 60 of 185



Page 61 of 185



Page 62 of 185



Page 63 of 185



Page 64 of 185



Page 65 of 185



Page 66 of 185



Page 67 of 185



Page 68 of 185



Page 69 of 185



Page 70 of 185



Page 71 of 185



Page 72 of 185



Page 73 of 185



Page 74 of 185



Page 75 of 185



Page 76 of 185



Page 77 of 185



Page 78 of 185



Page 79 of 185



Page 80 of 185



Page 81 of 185



Page 82 of 185



Page 83 of 185



Page 84 of 185



Page 85 of 185



Page 86 of 185



Page 87 of 185



Page 88 of 185



Page 89 of 185



Page 90 of 185



Page 91 of 185



Page 92 of 185



Page 93 of 185



Page 94 of 185



Page 95 of 185



Page 96 of 185



Page 97 of 185



Page 98 of 185



Page 99 of 185



Page 100 of 185



Page 101 of 185



Page 102 of 185



Page 103 of 185



Page 104 of 185



Page 105 of 185



Page 106 of 185



Page 107 of 185



Page 108 of 185



Page 109 of 185



Page 110 of 185



Page 111 of 185



Page 112 of 185



Page 113 of 185



Page 114 of 185



January 21, 2025 

Staff Report Briefing Materials 

AGENDA ITEM V.3 

Update and discussion on “Make Water a California Way of Life” regulations that 

took effect on January 1, 2025 

Page 115 of 185



AGENDA ITEM V.3 

Regular Board Meeting January 21, 2025 

To: 

From: 

Date: 

Subject: 

Board of Directors 

Tom R. Gray 

January 16, 2025 

Update and discussion on “Make Water a California Way of 

Life” regulations that took effect on January 1, 2025 

Recommendation: 

Information Item – no staff recommendation. 

Discussion: 

"Making Conservation a California Way of Life" is a regulation that establishes water 

conservation goals for urban water suppliers in California. The regulation was created by 

Senate Bill 606 (SB 606) and Assembly Bill 1668 (AB 1668) in 2018. The regulations 

took effect on January 1, 2025. 

Status Update: 

In accordance with calculations completed related to FOWD compliance using currently 

available data and regulations: 

• The FOWD will meet water budget targets through 2034.

• The FOWD will need to reduce demand by 10% by 3035.

Attachments: 

• Summary of regulation requirements.

Tasks: 

• Continue to monitor evolving regulations.

• Continue to train staff on compliance.

• Request that the General Manger of the San Juan Water District immediately stop

making public statements that are not true about FOWD requirements and

compliance.

Policy Implications: 

None because of the recommended action. 

Fiscal Impact: 

None because of the recommended action. 

Page 116 of 185



Page 117 of 185



Page 118 of 185



Page 119 of 185



 

 

January 21, 2025 

Staff Report Briefing Materials 

AGENDA ITEM VI.1 

Consider appointments to serve as District representatives to various organizations 

and committees 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 120 of 185



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM VI.1 

REGULAR Board Meeting on January 21, 2025 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Tom R. Gray 

Date: January 13, 2025 

Subject: Consider appointments to serve as District representatives to various 

organizations and committees  

Recommendation: 

Appoint Directors to serve as District representatives to various organizations and 

committees that benefit the District’s ratepayers.  

Discussion: 

Past practice of the FOWD Board of Directors was to have the President appoint 

individuals to external and internal activities as District representatives.   

In accordance with direction from the FOWD Board, the following subcommittees were 

formed in 2006: 

1. Budget 

2. Capital Improvement 

3. Personnel 

4. Public Relations 

5. Technical Advisory 

In accordance with direction from the FOWD Board, the following subcommittees were 

added in 2017: 

6. Wholesale Water Agreement 

The subcommittees meet intermittently and consist of two Board members and the 

General Manager.  The Board President typically makes appointment of Board members 

to the proposed committees.  The term of the appointment is typically for one year.  

Attached are the existing Board and Committee assignments for your review. 

 

Policy Implications: 

None. 

 

Fiscal Impact: 

None.   

Page 121 of 185



 

 

FAIR OAKS WATER DISTRICT

2025 ASSIGNMENTS

2025 - BOARD ASSIGNMENTS

Agency Name 2024 (Existing) 2025 (Proposed)

Sac. Groundwater Authority Marx, Petersen

Regional Water Authority Petersen, Gray, Marx (alternate)

ACWA JPIA Sarkovich, Dolby (backup)

Water Forum SE Petersen, Gray

2025 - COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS

Committee Name 2024 (Existing) 2025 (Proposed)

Budget Sarkovich, Dolby, Gray

Capital Improvement Petersen, Dolby, Gray

Personnel Vacant, Dolby, Gray

Public Relations Vacant, Dolby, Gray

Technical Advisory Marx, Petersen, Gray

FOWD and SJWD 2x2 Ad-Hoc Vacant, Petersen, Gray

FOWD and CWD 2x2 Ad-Hoc Vacant, Marx, Gray

Corporate Yard Ad-Hoc Sarkovich, Petersen, Gray

2025 - OUTREACH ASSIGNMENTS

Agency/Committee Name 2024 (Existing) 2025 (Proposed)

FO Chamber Gray, Petersen

Office of County Supervisor Gray, Petersen

Office of State Assemblyman Gray, Petersen

Office of State Senator Gray, Petersen

FOVEC Gray, Petersen

CSDA Gray, Petersen

AWWA Gray, Petersen

ACWA Gray, Petersen

LAFCo Gray, Petersen
 

 

 

Page 122 of 185



January 21, 2025 

Staff Report Briefing Materials 

AGENDA ITEM VI.2 

Sacramento Region comments on the Draft Sacramento / Delta Bay-Delta 

Updates to the Water Quality Control Plan 

Page 123 of 185



Page 124 of 185



Page 125 of 185



Page 126 of 185



Page 127 of 185



Page 128 of 185



Page 129 of 185



Page 130 of 185



Page 131 of 185



Page 132 of 185



Page 133 of 185



Page 134 of 185



Page 135 of 185



Page 136 of 185



Page 137 of 185



Page 138 of 185



Page 139 of 185



Page 140 of 185



Page 141 of 185



Page 142 of 185



Page 143 of 185



 
 

 

January 21, 2025 

Staff Report Briefing Materials 

AGENDA ITEM VI.3 

Discussion on FOWD Water Supply for the month of December 2024 and 2024 year-end 

 

  

Page 144 of 185



 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM VI.3 

REGULAR Board Meeting January 21, 2025 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Paul Siebensohn, Technical Service Manager 

Date: January 13, 2025 

Subject: Discussion on FOWD Water Supply for the month of December 2024 & 2024 

year-end 

Recommendation:    

None.  

Discussion: 

According to the wunderground.com website, the recorded average daily temperature in 

December 2024 was 50.2° F, which is 2.3 degrees below the historic average of 52.5° F for 

December.  Precipitation for December 2024 was recorded at 4.76” according to the Department 

of Water Resources Chicago rain station located in Fair Oaks. 

The wholesale connections provided 347.9 AC-FT (88.1%) of surface water and FOWD 

groundwater wells produced 47.2 AC-FT (11.9%) to meet the total water demand of 395.1 AC-

FT in December 2024. 

A graph of total consumption to date versus projected budget target is found in Exhibit A. 

A graph of groundwater and surface water use in 2024 to date is found in Exhibit B. 

Both the FO-40 and CTP wholesale connections remained open to provide surface water supply 

to the FOWD.   

According to the data provided by SJWD, the recorded volumes from wholesale connections 

are:  

     Forward   Reverse 

     Flow, AC-FT  Flow, AC-FT Total, AC-FT 

CTP Connection    203.05              0.02         203.03 

FO-40 (39”)               144.91                         0.04                    144.87 

TOTAL FROM SJWD             347.96              0.06                      347.90    

 

The average daily flow from wholesale connections for the month of December 2024 was 

recorded at 2,513 GPM. 

The maximum day water demand was reached on December 1, 2024, and was recorded at 

approximately 4.61 million gallons (MG) with the wholesale connections providing 4.41 MG 

Page 145 of 185



 
 

 

and FOWD groundwater wells providing 0.40 MG.  The minimum day water demand was 

recorded on December 17, 2024, at 3.29 MG.  The average daily demand was calculated at 4.12 

MG.  

The 10-year total average water use for the month of December is 383.97 AC-FT and December 

2013 total water demand was recorded at 529.55 AC-FT.  The December 2024 total water 

demand of 395.1 AC-FT represents an increase of 2.90% from the December 10-year average, a 

25.39% decrease from December 2013 consumption, and a 3.13% decrease from 2023 

consumption.   

During the month of December 2024, all wells performed in accordance with the approved 

operations plan. 

The Skyway Tank and Booster Station operated within normal parameters and in accordance 

with the seasonal operational schedule.  

The production breakdown per groundwater source for the month of December 2024 was:   

 Town Well     –                     0.92 AC-FT 

 Heather Well    –                     4.30 AC-FT  

 Northridge Well –                     1.23 AC-FT                 

 Madison Well    –                   14.42 AC-FT 

            Skyway Well     –                                           26.33 AC-FT 

 TOTAL GROUNDWATER             47.20 AC-FT   

 

A graph of the production of each well to date may be found in Exhibit D. 

 

The water distribution system and water supply facilities performed within design parameters 

during December. 

A graph of water consumption per month for 2013, 2023, and 2024 with average trendline is 

displayed in Exhibit C. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 146 of 185



 
 

 

2024 Consumption Analysis  

District staff produced water supply in accordance with FOWD Board direction for all of 2024, 

providing 9.92% of the total water used from its groundwater. For comparison, the total year of 

2023 the ratio was 64.6% purchased surface water to 35.4% groundwater production.  

The overall 2024 demand increased due to having the hottest summer on record and 2024 being 

the hottest year on record.  

The Maximum Day Demand (MDD) in 2024 was recorded on July 4th at 16.36 Million Gallons 

per Day (MGD). 

The total system consumption for 2024 is 9,819.74 AC-FT, 4.22% up from the 2023 total of 

9,043.21 AC-FT, and down 23.12% from the 2013 total of 12,258.97 AC-FT. 

The break-down of 2024 production between water supply sources and comparison with 2023 is 

shown in the table below. 

Water Supply 

Source 

2023 2024 Increase / 

(Decrease), %  

Wholesale 

Purchase 

(SJWD) 

5,841.06   8,845.83 51.4 

Groundwater 

Supply 

(FOWD)  

3,202.15 973.92 (69.6) 

Total  9,043.21  9,819.74 8.6 

 

The break-down of 2024 production between water supply sources and comparison with 2013 is 

shown in the table below.  2013 is the “baseline” year used for comparison of water supply 

savings per our Water Conservation Policy 6060. 

Water Supply 

Source 

2013 2024 Increase / 

(Decrease), %  

Wholesale 

Purchase 

(SJWD) 

10,939.25 8,845.83 (19.1) 

Groundwater 

Supply 

(FOWD)  

1,319.72 973.92 (26.2) 

Total  12,258.97 9,819.74 (19.9) 

Page 147 of 185



 
 

 

The following table compares 2024 consumption with the 10-year average consumption from 

all sources:  

Water Supply 

Source 

10-Year Average 2024 Increase / 

(Decrease), %  

Wholesale 

Purchase 

(SJWD) 

6,891.02 8,845.83 28.4 

Groundwater 

Supply (FOWD)  

2,591.01 973.92 (62.4) 

Total  9,482.03 9,819.74 3.6 

 

The groundwater supply was contributed by five groundwater wells:  Town Well, Heather Well,  

Northridge Well, Madison Well, and Skyway Well.  The breakdown for groundwater sources 

for 2023 vs. 2024 is presented below:  

Groundwater 

Source 

2023 2024 Increase / 

(Decrease), %  

Town Well  988.49 215.01 (78.2) 

Heather Well  1,309.16 242.50 (81.5) 

Northridge Well  87.98 27.41 (68.8) 

Madison Well 815.30 282.03 (64.4) 

Skyway Well 1.22 206.97 NA* 

Total  3,202.15 973.92 (71.2) 

*2024 was Skyway Well’s first year of total operation 

Fiscal Impact: 

None. 

 

Policy Implications: 

None. 

 

  

Page 148 of 185



 
  E

x
h
ib

it A

 

Page 149 of 185



 
  E

x
h
ib

it B
 

 

Page 150 of 185



 
  E

x
h
ib

it C
 

 

E
x
h
ib

it D
 

Page 151 of 185



 
  

 

Page 152 of 185



 

 

January 21, 2025 

Staff Report Briefing Materials 

AGENDA ITEM VI.4 

Discussion and possible action on 2024 funds for work in progress projects to be 

carried forward to 2025 and additional funding for 2025 expenses 

Page 153 of 185



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM VI.4 

REGULAR Board Meeting on January 21, 2025 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Tom R. Gray 

Date: January 15, 2025 

Subject: Discussion and possible action on 2024 funds for work in progress 

projects to be carried forward to 2025 and additional funding for 2025 

expenses 

Recommendation: 

Authorize the General Manager to carry forward $643,079.04 of the unused funds from 

2024 to 2025 for capital projects in progress and transfer $100,000 from contingency 

fund to cover capital project. 

 

Discussion: 

2024 Funds to be carried forward to 2025 

 

Capital Projects 

 

12-Inch Main Replacement on New York Avenue (C24TDNYASW) 

The Board approved funding for the 12-Inch Main Replacement on New York Avenue in 

2024 is $2,132,000, staff estimated closing out 2024 spending $1,150,000, and total cost 

incurred is $751,843.71.  No monies were budgeted in 2025 as the project was assumed 

to close-out in 2024.  Staff requests to transfer remaining $398,156.29 from 2024 to 2025 

to complete the project. 

 

New York Well Design (C24WTNYWD) 

The Board approved funding for the New York Well Design in 2024 is $23,404 and total 

cost incurred is $858.30.  Staff requests to transfer $22,545.70 from 2024 to 2025 to 

complete the project. 

 

New York Well Equipping (C24WTNYWDE) 

The Board approved funding for the New York Well Equipping in 2024 is $2,940,000, 

estimated to close out 2024 spending $350,000, and the total cost incurred was 

$342,770.84.  Staff requests to transfer $7,229.16 from 2024 to 2025 to complete the 

project. 

 

Northridge Well Replacement-Design (C24WTNWRD) 

The Board approved funding for the Northridge Well Replacement-Design in 2024 is 

$450,000, staff estimated to close out 2024 spending $150,000, and the total cost  

Page 154 of 185



 

 

 

incurred was $88,045.29.  Staff requests to transfer the remaining $61,954.71 from 2024 

to 2025 to complete the project. 

 

Greenvale Improvements (C24TDGI) 

The Board approved funding for Greenvale Improvement in 2024 is $55,000, staff 

estimated to close out 2024 spending $55,000, and the total cost incurred was $0.  Staff 

requests to transfer the remaining $55,000 from 2024 to 2025 to complete the project. 

 

Riverfront Lane Services Upgrade (C24TDRFL) 

The Board approved funding for Riverfront Lane Services in 2024 is $90,900, staff 

estimated to close out 2024 spending $2,000, and the total cost incurred was $1,330.30.  

Staff requests to transfer the remaining $669.70 from 2024 to 2025 to complete the 

project. 

 

T-Main Replacement Phases I & II (C24TDSH) 

The Board approved funding for T-Main Replacement Phases I & II in 2024 is $145,000, 

staff estimated to close out 2024 spending $105,100, and the total cost incurred was 

$11,460.17.  Staff requests to transfer the remaining $93,639.83 from 2024 to 2025 

(C25TDT1D) to complete the project. 

 

IT Consulting (E24PSCC) 

The Board approved funding for IT Consulting in 2024 is $123,500, staff estimated to 

close out 2024 spending $112,600, and the total cost incurred was $106,963.93.  Staff 

requests to transfer the $468.53 from 2024 to 2025 to cover committed costs. 

 

Computer Hardware < $500 (E24ITCH) 

The Board approved funding for Computer Hardware < $500 in 2024 is $5,000, staff 

estimated to close out 2024 spending $5,000, and the total cost incurred was $3,413.25.  

Staff requests to transfer the $815.12 from 2024 to 2025 to cover committed costs. 

 

Well Pump Repairs & Maintenance (E24DFWPM) 

The Board approved funding for Well Pump Repairs & Maintenance in 2024 is $24,000, 

staff estimated to close out 2024 spending $16,000, and the total cost incurred was 

$14,432.07.  Staff requests to transfer the $2,600 from 2024 to 2025 to cover committed 

costs. 

 

Additional Funding for 2025 

 

12-Inch Main Replacement on New York Avenue (C24TDNYASW) 

The Board approved funding for the 12-Inch Main Replacement on New York Avenue in 

2024 is $2,132,000 which included both phases I and II of the main replacement.  For 

phase I, staff estimated closing out 2024 spending $1,150,000.  Total cost incurred was 

$751,843.71, with $398,156.29 remaining of 2024 funds.  Staff anticipates an additional 

$100,000 needed due to change orders to close out the project.  Staff requests to transfer 

$100,000 from contingency fund to cover the additional expenses. 

Page 155 of 185



 

 

 

Policy Implications: 

None as a result of recommended action. 

 

Fiscal Impact: 

This fund carryforward and additional funding transfer will decrease contingency fund by 

$100,000.  No net impact to year-end reserves. 

 

Page 156 of 185



 

 

January 21, 2025 

Staff Report Briefing Materials 

AGENDA ITEM VI.6 

Update and discussion on FOWD 2024 Metered Water Deliveries  

Page 157 of 185



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM VI.6 

REGULAR Board Meeting on January 21, 2025 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Shawn Huckaby 

Date: January 14, 2025 

Subject: Update and Discussion on 2024 FOWD Metered Water Deliveries 

Recommendation: 

None – information item. 

Discussion: 

FOWD staff reconciles annual water supply and metered water deliveries at the end of each 

year. This reconciliation process is performed by comparing the combination of surface 

water purchased from San Juan Water District and groundwater produced from FOWD 

wells against actual water delivered to customers, as measured through FOWD water 

meters. The difference is calculated and reported as non-revenue water loss.   

Industry standards (e.g. AWWA) allow up to 10% non-revenue water loss as an acceptable 

number and good indicator of a well-maintained water system. 

FOWD Metered Water Deliveries – Year 2024 (AF) 

Water Supply:     9,820 

Water Deliveries:    9,294  

Non-Revenue Water Loss      526 

Non-Revenue Water Loss Percentage: 5.36% 

Water Supply: 

Surface Water – FOWD staff regularly records water received from the San Juan Water 

District via the metered wholesale water connection(s).  The meter(s) are strategically read 

at the end of each year to determine water supplied during the calendar year.  

Surface Water Supply (2024) = 8,846 AF 

Groundwater – FOWD staff regularly records water produced from all FOWD owned and 

maintained metered groundwater sources.  These groundwater sources include Town Well, 

Heather Well, Northridge Well, Madison Well, and Skyway Well. The meter(s) for these 

groundwater sources are strategically read at the end of each year to determine water 

supplied during the calendar year. 

Page 158 of 185



 

 

Groundwater Supply (2024) = 974 AF 

Water Deliveries: 

FOWD staff has installed and maintains a water meter on all customer water connections 

to accurately measure all authorized consumption. FOWD strategically reads all meter(s) 

bi-monthly for billing purposes and once at the end of each year to determine water 

delivered to our customers during the calendar year. This is done by performing a mass 

read (all meters are downloaded at the same time and read the last week of each year). The 

information (consumption) is recorded in the FOWD billing system.    

Non-Revenue Water Loss: 

Explanation for non-revenue water loss (Water Supplied minus Water Deliveries) and the 

apparent losses typically include: 

• Meters are not measuring 100% of water delivered. 

• Unauthorized consumption (e.g., theft). 

• Systematic data handling errors 

• Leaks 

Water Deliveries by Service Type: 

 

 

Policy Implications: 

None. 

Fiscal Impact: 

Financial impacts of water losses included in budget preparation. 

Page 159 of 185



 

 

January 21, 2025 

Staff Report Briefing Materials 

AGENDA ITEM VI.7 

Update and discussion on FOWD fire hydrants  

and readiness to perform  

Page 160 of 185



AGENDA ITEM VI.7 

REGULAR Board Meeting on January 21, 2025 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Tom R. Gray 

Date: January 14, 2025 

Subject: Update and discussion on FOWD fire hydrants and readiness to perform 

Recommendation: 

Information item – no staff recommendation. 

Discussion: 

The recent devastation caused by the fierce Los Angeles fires has resulted in general 

criticism about California's water management and specific concerns about fire hydrant 

readiness to serve. This situation has caused some Fair Oaks Water District (FOWD) 

customer anxiety about the readiness to perform of FOWD owned fire hydrants. 

• FOWD owns and maintains approximately 1800 fire hydrants.

• FOWD maintains a written Fire Hydrant Maintenance Program.

• FOWD maintains a hydraulic model that provides predicted flows and pressures at

every FOWD owned fire hydrant.

• In 2024 FOWD completed a comprehensive Fire Hydrant Assessment Program and

database of the results.

• Standard practice is for all FOWD fire hydrants to have two sources of water.

• In general, FOWD fire hydrants can maintain both pressure and required flow by a

gravity flow of surface water.

• FOWD maintains a redundant water supply for fire hydrants of groundwater that

has backup diesel generators to produce the water supply in emergencies.

• Over the last ten years the FOWD has replaced approximately 20 fire hydrants per

year.

The FOWD is confident that your water system and water supply are ready to perform in 

accordance with design. 

Policy Implications: 

None.  

Fiscal Impact: 

None - routine maintenance of the FOWD water system is embedded in the 2025 Board 

approved budget. 

Page 161 of 185



 

 

January 21, 2025 

Staff Report Briefing Materials 

AGENDA ITEM VI.8 

Discussion and possible action on General Manager’s 

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement 

 

Page 162 of 185



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM VI.8 

REGULAR Board Meeting on January 21, 2025 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Tom R. Gray, General Manager 

Date: January 16, 2025 

Subject: Discussion and Possible action on General Manager’s Amended and 

Restated Employment Agreement 

Recommendations: 

Approved the attached Amended and Restated Employment Agreement for the FOWD 

General Manager and authorize the FOWD Board President to sign. 

 

Discussion: 

In accordance with FOWD Policy No. 4050, the FOWD Board of Director’s met in 

closed session on December 16, 2024 to complete a public employee performance 

evaluation of the FOWD General Manager. Board consensus was that the General 

Manger performed well on behalf of FOWD ratepayers and generally exceeded the 

expectations of the FOWD Board in 2024. 

At the conclusion of the performance evaluation process, the attached Amended and 

Restated Employment Agreement was developed for approval at the next regular meeting 

of the Fair Oaks Water District Board of Directors. 

Policy Implications: 

None  

 

Fiscal Impact:  

None – All costs were included in the Board approved annual budget for 2025. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 163 of 185



Page 1 of 7 

 

FAIR OAKS WATER DISTRICT 

GENERAL MANAGER 

AMENDED AND RESTATED EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 

This amended and restated employment agreement effective on January 1, 2025, is 
between the Fair Oaks Water District ("District"), and Tom R. Gray ("General Manager"). 
District and General Manager agree to the following terms and conditions of 
employment. 

1. PERIOD OF EMPLOYMENT. The District selected Mr. Gray as the General 
Manager of the District on October 25, 2004. District continues to employ Mr. Gray as 
General Manager and District Secretary from the date of this Agreement until 
December 31, 2026; or as extended by the FOWD Board and Mr. Gray; or employment 
is terminated in accordance with Section 5. 

2. AT-WILL EMPLOYMENT. General Manager is an at-will employee who shall serve 
at the pleasure of the Board of Directors. The terms of the District's personnel rules, 
policies, procedures, ordinances or resolutions ("Personnel Policies") shall apply, 
except that in the event of any conflict between such policies and this agreement, this 
agreement shall control. This at-will employment shall be subject to the rights and 
obligations of District and General Manager as set forth in Section 5 of this Agreement. 

3. POSITION AND RESPONSIBILITIES. 

(a) Position. General Manager accepts employment with the District as 
General Manager and District Secretary. The General Manager's regular working hours 
shall generally be a "9/80" type schedule from 7:30 am to 5:00 pm Monday through 
Thursday; every other Friday 7:30 am to 4:00 pm, and the remaining Friday's off. During 
these regular working hours, the General Manager is expected to be engaged in District 
business either at the District's office or at another worksite belonging to the District, 
or at other locations as needed on District business. It is anticipated that the General 
Manager will regularly be required to attend meetings and other events both during 
his regular working hours and after those hours either on weekends or in the evening. 
The General Manager's attendance at these meetings or events is part of his/her 
regular job duties and no additional compensation shall be paid for attendance at these 
meetings or events. Absences will be reported to the President or Vice-President. 

(b) Accountability. General Manager shall provide service at the direction of 
and under the supervision of the District's Board of Directors. General Manager shall 
report directly to Board of Directors and will, on occasion, give a report of his activities 
on a periodic basis to the Board of Directors as determined by the Board. 

(c) Duties. The General Manager shall be the chief administrative officer of 
the District, and is hereby designated as the person who shall have charge of, handle 
and have access to the property of the District. The General Manager shall be 
responsible to the Board of Directors for the proper administration of all affairs of the 
District. The General Manager shall have, pursuant to California Water Code Section 
71362, and the District's Personnel Policies, full charge and control of the maintenance, 

Page 164 of 185



Page 2 of 7 

 

operation and construction of the water systems under the operational control of the 
District. To that end, the General Manager shall have the following authorities and 
responsibilities: 

(i) Appoint, discipline, suspend and terminate the employment of 
any employee of the District subject to compliance with applicable Board approved 
policies. The General Manager shall have the authority to delegate these 
responsibilities to senior management staff. 

(ii) Shall, as the General Manager, have the authority to hire, 
oversee and discharge all individuals or entities operating as a consultant for the 
District, except that the General Manager agrees to notify the Board of Directors, in 
writing, at least 7 days prior to terminating any individual or entity providing 
consulting services for the District. 

(iii) Prepare the annual budget and submit it to the Board of 
Directors together with a description of its important features, and be responsible for 
its administration after adoption; 

(iv) Keep the Board of Directors advised as to the current financial 
condition and future needs of the District and make such recommendations as the 
General Manager may deem necessary or desirable; 

(v) Review with the Board of Directors job descriptions for each 
position in the District and recommend a standard pay range for each position, 
including minimum and maximum pay rates; select specific pay rates and approve 
merit increases for employees, at the time of hiring and subsequently; 

(vi) Recommend to the Board of Directors the adoption of such 
measures as the General Manager may deem necessary or expedient for the 
improvement of water services; 

(vii) Consolidate, combine or reorganize positions, departments, or 
units of the District; 

(viii) Implement the purchasing policies as adopted by the Board of 
Directors for the purchase of all materials, supplies and equipment for which funds 
are provided in the budget, execute contracts necessary for the operation or 
maintenance of District services for amounts determined from time to time by the 
Board of Directors. However, no purchase shall be made, contract executed or 
obligation incurred for any item or service which exceeds the total budget 
appropriation, without approval of the Board of Directors, except for transfers 
between line items for similar goods or services. No public works contract for 
construction shall be executed, except by authority of the Board of Directors; 

(ix) Negotiate, after consultation with the Board of Directors, with 
all third-parties, contracts involving the District as a party; 

Page 165 of 185



Page 3 of 7 

 

(x) Investigate the operations of the District or any department of 
the District; and 

(xi) Serve as Secretary of the District. 

(d) Other Activity. The General Manager agrees to devote his full time and 
attention to the discharge of the General Manager's duties. Those duties include 
participation in regional and community activities which, in the opinion of the Board, 
are in furtherance of the interest of the rate payers of the District. 

(i) Except upon the prior written consent of the Board of Directors 
or as stated below, the General Manager (during the term of this Agreement) shall 
not (1) accept any other employment; or (2) engage, directly or indirectly, in any other 
business, commercial, or professional activity (whether or not pursued for pecuniary 
advantage) that is or may be competitive with the District, that might create a conflict 
of interest with the District, or that otherwise might interfere with the business and 
operations of the District. So that the District may be aware of the extent of any other 
demands upon General Manager's time and attention, General Manager shall 
disclose in confidence to the Board of Directors the nature and scope of any other 
business activity in which he is or becomes engaged during the term of this 
Agreement. This shall not be deemed to prohibit passive personal investments. 

4. COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS. 

(a) Compensation. 

(i) Cost of Living Adjustment. On January 1 of every year, District 
shall adjust the base pay of the General Manager in accordance with FOWD Policy 
No. 4070. 

(ii) Base Annual Salary. In consideration of the services to be 
rendered under this Agreement, District shall pay General Manager, as his base 
annual salary, $246,000 effective on January 1, 2024. This amount shall be paid 
pursuant to the procedures regularly established, and as they may be amended, by 
District in its sole discretion. 

(iii) Bonuses. Based on performance, the District shall pay General 

Manager a one-time bonus of $0 (zero dollars). 

(iv) CalPERS Employee's Contribution. General Manager is a 
"Classic member' of CalPERS, meaning an individual not considered a "new member" 
under the Public Employee's Pension Reform Act of 2013, specifically Government 
Code section 7522.04. Pursuant to Government Code section 20691, the District may 
pay all or a portion of Classic members' normal contributions to CalPERS, known as 
Employer Paid Member Contribution (EPMC). District hereby agrees to pay the same 
percentage of General Manager's member contribution, i.e., EPMC, as it pays for the 
other Classic member District employees, consistent with Government Code section 
20691 and the District's contract with CalPERS. The District may periodically increase, 

Page 166 of 185



Page 4 of 7 

 

reduce or eliminate the payment of EPMC for all Classic members (including General 
Manager). 

(v) Evaluations. The Board of Directors shall provide general 
manager with a written annual evaluation at least annually. This evaluation shall 
detail the General Manager's accomplishments and highlight areas for improvement, 
if any, from the last evaluation. 

(vi) Annual Written Goals and Policy Objectives. On or about the 
anniversary date of this Agreement, General Manager shall provide the Board of 
Directors with a written summary of the goals the General Manager is to accomplish 
in the following calendar year. This written summary shall prioritize the goals to be 
accomplished by the General Manager and shall further state that such goals and 
policy objectives are to be completed within the year. The Board of Directors shall 
adjust the goals as needed to align with the Board's vision of the District goals. 

(b) Benefits. General Manager shall be provided the same types of benefits 
afforded by the District to other management level employees, which now exist or 
hereafter may be adopted, in accordance with the District's Personnel Policy, except 
that in the event of any conflict between such benefits and this agreement, this 
agreement shall control. Currently, vacation time for the General Manager is accrued 
at the rate of four (4) weeks' annually and shall be capped at a maximum of ten (10) 
weeks. In addition, administration leave for the General Manager is thirteen (13) days 
annually, with full allotment occurring on January 1 of each year. All administration 
leave accrued shall be exhausted by the end of the year it is allocated and not carried 
over to the next year. Administration leave accrued prior to the date of this contract 
shall not have an expiration date. Currently the Board has suspended all caps on leave 
for the General Manager based on business need. 

(c) Auto Cost Reimbursement. District agrees to pay General Manager an 
automobile allowance in the amount of $300 per month for the use of his personal 
vehicle while conducting District business. The General Manger agrees to pay all costs 
of insurance, maintenance and all other costs related to his vehicle. The General 
Manger shall not be entitled to mileage reimbursement for travel within the 
Sacramento region. General Manager shall maintain at his own expense an automobile 
general liability and property damage insurance policy with limits of at least $300,000 
for personal injury and $100,000 for property damage at all times of employment with 
the District. The General Manager shall also name the Fair Oaks Water District as an 
“also insured” on the required auto insurance policy. 

(d) Additional Insurance. General Manger's duties require that the 
individual be exposed to possible personal liability and risk. District shall pay up to $500 
annually towards an "umbrella" insurance policy of the General Managers choosing. 

5. TERMINATION OF EMPLOYMENT 

(a) By District Not For Cause. At any time, District may terminate General 
Manager without Cause (as defined below) by providing General Manager with three 
months advance written notice. District shall have the option, in its complete 

Page 167 of 185



Page 5 of 7 

 

discretion, to terminate General Manager at any time prior to the end of such notice 
period, provided District pays General Manager all compensation due and owing 
through the last day actually worked, plus an amount equal to the base salary, benefits, 
and accrued benefit balances General Manager would have earned and accrued 
through the balance of the above notice period, or the remaining balance of the 
Agreement, whichever is less; thereafter, all of District's obligations under this 
Agreement shall cease. District may dismiss General Manager as provided in the 
Section 5 notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in or arising from any 
statements, policies, or practices of District relating to the employment, discipline, or 
termination of its employees. 

(b) By District for Cause. District may terminate General Manager for Cause. 
District shall pay General Manager all compensation then due and owing; thereafter, 
all of District's obligations under this Agreement shall cease. Termination shall be for 
"Cause" if General Manager: (i) acts in bad faith and to the detriment of District; (ii) 
refuses or fails to act in accordance with any specific legal direction or order of a 
majority of the Board of Directors; (iii) exhibits in regard to his employment unfitness 
or unavailability for service, materially unsatisfactory performance, misconduct, 
dishonesty, habitual neglect, or incompetence; (iv) is convicted of a crime involving 
dishonesty, breach of trust, or physical or emotional harm to any person; or (v) 
breaches any material term of the Agreement; provided however, that the District does 
not arbitrarily or capriciously call for his dismissal. Notice of the proposed discharge by 
the District shall be given in writing to the General Manager along with a reasonably 
detailed statement of charges and copies of the materials upon which the proposed 
action is based. The General Manager shall be entitled to a hearing before the District's 
Board of Directors. Reasonable time shall be permitted for the General Manager to 
prepare for the hearing. Such hearing shall be conducted in closed session, unless 
specifically prohibited by state law or a public hearing is requested by the General 
Manager. Any decision by the District shall be in writing and shall be served upon the 
General Manager. 

(c) By General Manager. At any time, General Manager may terminate this 
Agreement and resign his employment by providing District thirty (30) days advance 
written notice. District shall have the option, in its complete discretion, to terminate 
General Manager at any time prior to the end of such notice period, provided District 
pays General Manager all compensation and benefits due and owing through the last 
day actually worked, plus an amount equal to the base salary, benefits, and accrued 
benefit balances, General manager would have earned through the balance of the 
above notice period; thereafter all District's obligations under this Agreement shall 
cease. 

(d) Termination Obligations. 

(i) General Manager agrees that all property, including, without 
limitation, all equipment, tangible proprietary information, documents, books, 
records, reports, notes, contracts, lists, computer disks (and other computer 
generated files and data) created on any medium and furnished to, obtained by, or 
prepared by General Manager in the course of or incident to his employment, 

Page 168 of 185



Page 6 of 7 

 

belongs to District and shall be returned promptly to District upon termination of the 
Period of Employment except for copies of public records and notes which are in the 
personal custody of the General Manager. 

(ii) The representations and warranties contained in this 
Agreement and the General Manager's obligations shall survive the termination of 
the Period of Employment and the expiration of this Agreement. 

(iii) Following any termination of the Period of Employment, 
General Manager shall fully cooperate with District in all matters relating to the 
winding up of pending work on behalf of District and the orderly transfer of work to 
other employees of District. General Manager shall also cooperate in the defense of 
any action brought by any third party against District that relates in any way to 
General Manager's acts or omissions while employed by District. 

6. NOTICES. Any notice or other communication under this Agreement must be in 
writing and shall be effective upon delivery by hand or three (3) business days after 
deposit in the United States mail, postage prepaid, certified or registered, and 
addressed to District or to General Manager at the corresponding address or fax 
number below. General Manager shall be obligated to notify District in writing of any 
change in his address. Notice of change of address shall be effective only when done in 
accordance with this Section. 

District's Notice Address: 

10326 Fair Oaks Boulevard 

Fair oaks, California 95628-7187  

Fax: (916) 967-0153 

General Manager's Notice Address: 

6800 Country Court 

Granite Bay, California 95746 
 

7. ACTION BY DISTRICT. All actions required or permitted to be taken under this 
Agreement by District, including, without limitation, exercise of discretion, consents, 
waivers, and amendments to this Agreement, shall be made and authorized only by the 
Board of Directors or by its representative specifically authorized in writing to fulfill 
these obligations under this Agreement. 

8. AMENDMENTS; WAIVERS. This Agreement may not be amended except by an 
instrument in writing, signed by each of the parties. No failure to exercise and no delay 
in exercising any right, remedy, or power under the Agreement shall operate as a 
waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial exercise of any right, remedy, or power 
under this Agreement preclude any other or further exercise thereof, or the exercise of 
any other right, remedy, or power provided herein or by law or in equity. 

Page 169 of 185



Page 7 of 7 

 

9. SEVERABILITY. If any provision of this Agreement, or its application to any 
person, place, or circumstance, is held by an arbitrator or a court of competent 
jurisdiction to be invalid, unenforceable, or void, such provision shall be enforced, or 
modified at the discretion of the District, to the greatest extent permitted by law, and 
the remainder of this Agreement and such provision as applied to other persons, 
places, and circumstances shall remain in full force and effect. 

10. INTEGRATION. This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding and 
agreement of the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes any 
previous oral or written agreement. This Agreement may be modified or amended only 
by a subsequent written instrument executed by all of the parties 

11. INDEMNIFICATION. To the full extent and manner provided for public 
employees by applicable law, the District shall indemnify, defend, and hold General 
Manager harmless from any demands, claims, suits, actions and legal proceedings 
brought against him in his official or personal capacity arising out of events within the 
scope of his employment with the District. 

12. POTENTIAL LITIGATION. The venue for any legal action, arbitration, or other 
proceeding brought to enforce or interpret the terms of this Agreement shall be 
Sacramento County, CA. 

13. GOVERNING LAW. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the law of the State of California. 

14. GENERAL MANAGER ACKNOWLEDGMENT. General Manager acknowledges 
that he has had the opportunity to consult legal counsel in regard to this Agreement, 
that he has read and understands this Agreement, that he is fully aware of its legal 
effect, and that he has entered into it freely and voluntarily and based on his own 
judgment and not on any representations or promises other than those contained in 
this Agreement. Therefore, the presumption that differences in interpretation shall go 
against the drafting party does not apply. 

The parties have duly executed this Agreement as of the date first written above. 

General Manager: 

  

___________________________________  _____________________ 

Tom R. Gray      Date 

 

Fair Oaks Water District 

 

 

 ___________________________________  _____________________ 

Board President     Date 

Page 170 of 185



 

 

January 21, 2025 

Staff Report Briefing Materials 

AGENDA ITEM X.1 

Maintenance Work Report 

 

 

 

Page 171 of 185



            Date Address Type

AMR Replacements Monthly Total                       164 AMR / R900i #

12/4/2024 4717 DELLA ROBIA CT 1581675224

12/5/2024 8946 SUNSET AVE 1567863406

12/5/2024 5309 NAVIGATION CT 1575714672

12/6/2024 4824 SKYWAY DR 1581672796

12/6/2024 9201 MADISON AVE 1581319732

12/6/2024 9166 FALCON RIDGE LN 1581620294

12/6/2024 9159 PEBBLE CANYON LN 1581656088

12/6/2024 8779 CLIFFORD CT 1581613302

12/6/2024 5042 KENNETH AVE 1581655670

12/6/2024 5214 VALONIA ST 1581651570

12/6/2024 8649 GUNNER WAY 1581618478

12/6/2024 8685 GUNNER WAY 1581588374

12/6/2024 5008 GERHARDT PL 1581673924

12/6/2024 9011 PHOENIX AVE 1581621504

12/6/2024 5113 ARROYO ST 1581666398

12/6/2024 5129 EMBASSY LN 1581587098

12/6/2024 8910 AMERIGO AVE 1581605368

12/6/2024 8913 AMERIGO AVE 1581623390

12/6/2024 4825 MASSEY LN 1581650514

12/6/2024 5125 RABENECK WAY 1581596406

12/6/2024 8952 BARRHILL WAY 1581652410

12/6/2024 4721 MEADOWOOD WAY 1581621586

12/6/2024 4915 HAZEL AVE 1581655738

12/6/2024 8848 OLIVE RANCH LN 1581602292

12/10/2024 4338 ILLINOIS AVE 1581652022

12/11/2024 4821 SUNSET PLACE LN 1581616122

12/11/2024 8910 LEATHAM AVE 1581651320

12/11/2024 9031 LEATHAM AVE 1581617590

12/11/2024 9061 LEATHAM AVE 1581586144

12/11/2024 8967 CLIFFSIDE LN 1581656682

      Monthly Maintenance Work Report

 DECEMBER 2024 Page 1 of 8
Page 172 of 185



            Date Address Type

12/11/2024 4110 RISING OAKS CT 1581621522

12/11/2024 8942 CLIFFSIDE LN 1581604940

12/11/2024 8778 CLIFFORD CT 1581625142

12/11/2024 5213 TUCSON CIR 1581665742

12/11/2024 7656 WESTOVER CT 1581656366

12/11/2024 7707 OLIVE ST 1579249618

12/11/2024 4721 NEW YORK AVE 1581627400

12/11/2024 4617 MINNESOTA AVE 1581605076

12/11/2024 7992 CALIFORNIA AVE 1543169958

12/11/2024 3909 CENTRAL AVE 1581600788

12/11/2024 8198 TOYON AVE 1581627566

12/11/2024 8559 SHAWNEE AVE 1581671820

12/11/2024 8510 DOMINIQUE CT 1581685158

12/11/2024 8385 HIDDEN VALLEY CIR 1581625146

12/11/2024 8417 RANCHITA WAY 1581872558

12/11/2024 8438 HIDDEN VALLEY CIR 1581666388

12/11/2024 8555 EMPEROR DR 1581667730

12/11/2024 8538 EMPEROR DR 1581672686

12/11/2024 4516 VAN DYCE WAY 1581607738

12/11/2024 4630 OAK GLEN WAY 1581685196

12/11/2024 8968 BLUFF LN 1581617566

12/11/2024 4570 OXBOW RIDGE PL 1581712952

12/11/2024 4505 OXBOW RIDGE PL 1581697284

12/17/2024 9167 FALCON RIDGE LN 1581597788

12/17/2024 5637 WALNUT AVE 1581607742

12/17/2024 9246 OUTPOST CT 1581625234

12/17/2024 5145 OAK SHADE WAY 1581607584

12/17/2024 9348 HONEYWOOD CT 1581621244

12/18/2024 9139 LA SERENA DR 1581617582

12/18/2024 4242 CURRAGH OAKS LN 1581616094

12/18/2024 5218 MAUI WAY 1581602946

12/18/2024 5088 COCOA PALM WAY 1581602888

12/18/2024 5018 SHADOWOOD WAY 1581618804

12/18/2024 4941 RICHWOOD CT 1581619456

12/18/2024 4900 TIMOTHY WAY 1581607892

12/19/2024 9050 SUNSET AVE 1581706982

 DECEMBER 2024 Page 2 of 8
Page 173 of 185



            Date Address Type

12/19/2024 9070 LA SERENA DR 1581625818

12/19/2024 4530 VEGA DEL RIO DR 1581589130

12/19/2024 4450 LA MIRADA CIR 1581623618

12/19/2024 8903 CLIFFSIDE LN 1581621230

12/19/2024 5367 WEDGE CIR 1581625130

12/19/2024 4909 DURLAND WAY 1581619478

12/19/2024 4033 BANNISTER RD 1581623774

12/19/2024 3960 BANNISTER RD 1581607216

12/19/2024 8066 DORIAN WAY 1581616854

12/20/2024 4508 WAWONA CIR 1581618380

12/20/2024 4705 ISABELLA AVE 1581625862

12/20/2024 7815 OLIVE ST 1581597306

12/20/2024 4706 NEW YORK AVE 1581617232

12/20/2024 4231 NEW YORK AVE 1581804450

12/20/2024 4634 MINNESOTA AVE 1581599588

12/20/2024 5109 DORY WAY 1581607746

12/23/2024 5242 PHOENIX RIDGE PL 1581667972

12/23/2024 9416 BUFFALO AVE 1581618540

12/23/2024 5310 MAIN AVE 1581622036

12/23/2024 9510 WINTERBROOK WAY 1581622042

12/23/2024 9324 TWIN LAKES AVE 1581590744

12/23/2024 5495 BLUET CT 1581611778

12/23/2024 5487 PLANTAIN CIR 1581625844

12/23/2024 5451 PLANTAIN CIR 1581616794

12/23/2024 5447 PLANTAIN CIR 1581623986

12/23/2024 5330 BRANDING IRON LN 1581609814

12/23/2024 5155 LONG CANYON DR 1581604026

12/23/2024 9104 HAMPTON CT 1581619888

12/23/2024 9046 WINDING OAK DR 1581619014

12/23/2024 8721 LATIMER WAY 1581602882

12/24/2024 9181 MADISON AVE 1579551116

12/24/2024 5441 MCKAY ST 1581655454

12/24/2024 5318 MCMILLAN DR 1581617568

12/24/2024 5324 MAUI WAY 1581605058

12/24/2024 5330 CHICAGO AVE 1581619382

12/24/2024 8373 ASCOLANO AVE 1581602532

 DECEMBER 2024 Page 3 of 8
Page 174 of 185



            Date Address Type

12/24/2024 5129 MOLAKINI CT 1581625634

12/24/2024 8161 DESERET AVE 1581657150

12/24/2024 8152 MADERIA PORT LN 1581625640

12/24/2024 8438 ASCOLANO AVE 1581602926

12/24/2024 8400 CORONA VISTA WAY 1581625662

12/24/2024 8672 PHOENIX AVE 1581602892

12/24/2024 8621 FAIRMONT WAY 1581597336

12/24/2024 5032 LUKE WAY 1581625644

12/24/2024 9930 FAIR OAKS BLVD 1581868356

12/24/2024 5607 PECAN AVE 1581666578

12/24/2024 7959 ORANGE AVE 1581655106

12/24/2024 4716 STAR RD 1581602868

12/24/2024 7631 WINDING WAY 1581625230

12/24/2024 4300 STENCAR DR 1581655724

12/24/2024 3780 FAIR HILL RD 1581806630

12/24/2024 7748/ 7750 SOUTHCLIFF DR 1581603314

12/24/2024 4509/ 4511 CASA CT 1581804122

12/24/2024 4301 RIDGEPARK CT 1581604030

12/24/2024 7971 VIA ROMA DR 1581656318

12/24/2024 8015 ORANGE AVE 1581656654

12/24/2024 10741 FAIR OAKS BLVD 1581883852

12/24/2024 4227 SUNRISE BLVD 1581742060

12/24/2024 4018 CAPITOLA HILLS CT 1581596210

12/24/2024 3897 CENTRAL AVE 1581806562

12/24/2024 8157 SHANGRILA DR 1581619470

12/24/2024 4923 TOMMAR DR 1581701332

12/24/2024 8150/ 8152 PLUMERIA AVE 1581625656

12/24/2024 11033 FAIR OAKS BLVD 1581596218

12/24/2024 7948 CLOVER HILL LN 1581625646

12/24/2024 4340 WENDOVER CT 1581602444

12/24/2024 4327 WENDOVER CT 1581614596

12/24/2024 7909 CHARCREST CT 1581596224

12/24/2024 4731 HILLCREST AVE 1581806602

12/24/2024 4521 ILLINOIS AVE 1581777874

12/24/2024 4120 NATOMA AVE 1581806628

12/24/2024 8397 SUNSET AVE 1581618644

 DECEMBER 2024 Page 4 of 8
Page 175 of 185



            Date Address Type

12/24/2024 4730 KATHYWOOD CT 1581610000

12/26/2024 8100- 8128 MADISON AVE 1581889912

12/26/2024 5245 SIR LANCELOT LN 1581650528

12/26/2024 8431 MARINA VISTA LN 1581609910

12/26/2024 5031 HAVELOK ST 1581595916

12/26/2024 8558 LAFITTE CT 1581607734

12/26/2024 8361 TRINITY LN 1581605070

12/26/2024 11330 FAIR OAKS BLVD 1581635484

12/26/2024 11330 FAIR OAKS BLVD 1581607740

12/26/2024 7978 GLENBAR WAY 1581618582

12/26/2024 8101 ROCKFIELD CT 1581605670

12/26/2024 7925 FIELD STONE LN 1581625638

12/26/2024 8548 WILLINGS WAY 1581614706

12/26/2024 4950 SHAMROCK DR 1581621246

12/27/2024 11330 FAIR OAKS BLVD 1581625526

12/27/2024 4266 NEW YORK AVE 1581756518

12/27/2024 9200 FAIR OAKS BLVD 1581888168

12/27/2024 4517 SIERRA VIEW WAY 1581625840

12/27/2024 8135 WINDING WAY 1581582732

12/27/2024 8141/ 8143 MONTE PARK AVE 1581618386

12/27/2024 8021 HIDDEN VIEW CIR 1581615542

12/27/2024 8304 WINDING WAY 1582314050

12/30/2024 4348 KENTWOOD LN 1851652022

12/30/2024 5716 SKYRIDGE DR 1581704644

12/30/2024 8756 BLUFF LN 1577321136

12/31/2024 9145 KENDRICK WAY 1581655744

Meters Replaced Monthly Total                      85 Meter #

12/2/2024 5419 NORWAY DR 17950516

12/2/2024 5458 NORWAY DR 17950518

12/2/2024 5453 NORWAY DR 17950519

12/2/2024 5424 NORWAY DR 17950520

12/2/2024 5463 NORWAY DR 17950521

12/3/2024 5476 NORWAY DR 17950528

12/3/2024 5470 NORWAY DR 17950529

12/3/2024 5415 NORWAY DR 17950527

 DECEMBER 2024 Page 5 of 8
Page 176 of 185



            Date Address Type

12/3/2024 5407 NORWAY DR 17950526

12/4/2024 5531 NORWAY DR 17950534

12/4/2024 5521 NORWAY DR 17950536

12/4/2024 5511 NORWAY DR 17950537

12/4/2024 5551 NORWAY DR 17950540

12/4/2024 5541 NORWAY DR 17950541

12/4/2024 5482 NORWAY DR 17950354

12/4/2024 5501 NORWAY DR 17950355

12/4/2024 5483 NORWAY DR 17950356

12/4/2024 5473 NORWAY DR 17950357

12/4/2024 5540 NORWAY DR 17950539

12/4/2024 5550 NORWAY DR 17950538

12/4/2024 5530 NORWAY DR 17950535

12/5/2024 5612 NORWAY DR 17950417

12/5/2024 5631 NORWAY DR 17950366

12/5/2024 5617 NORWAY DR 17950367

12/5/2024 5613 NORWAY DR 17950368

12/5/2024 5609 NORWAY DR 17950369

12/5/2024 5738 STOKELY CT 17950370

12/5/2024 5742 STOKELY CT 17950371

12/5/2024 5635 STOKELY CT 17950372

12/5/2024 5639 STOKELY CT 17950373

12/5/2024 5606 NORWAY DR 17950416

12/5/2024 5565 NORWAY DR 17950415

12/5/2024 5561 SUTTON WAY 17950414

12/9/2024 9125 SUTTON WAY 17950390

12/9/2024 9119 SUTTON WAY 17950391

12/9/2024 5525 BELLINGHAM WAY 17950392

12/9/2024 5518 BELLINGHAM WAY 17950393

12/9/2024 5542 BELLINGHAM WAY 17950394

12/9/2024 5546 BELLINGHAM WAY 17950395

12/9/2024 5539 BELLINGHAM WAY 17950396

12/9/2024 5543 BELLINGHAM WAY 17950397

12/9/2024 5734 SUTTON WAY 17950399

12/9/2024 9113 SUTTON WAY 17950400

12/9/2024 9120 CHAUNCEY WAY 17950401

 DECEMBER 2024 Page 6 of 8
Page 177 of 185



            Date Address Type

12/10/2024 5530 CHAUNCEY WAY 17950374

12/10/2024 5536 BELLINGHAM WAY 17950375

12/10/2024 5547 BELLINGHAM WAY 17950376

12/10/2024 5524 CLAIBORNE WAY 17950377

12/10/2024 5600 CLAIBORNE WAY 17950382

12/10/2024 5537 CHAUNCEY WAY 17950402

12/10/2024 5549 CHAUNCEY WAY 17950403

12/10/2024 5555 CHAUNCEY WAY 17950404

12/10/2024 5561 CHAUNCEY WAY 17950405

12/10/2024 5401 NORWAY DR 17950533

12/10/2024 5412 NORWAY DR 17950532

12/10/2024 5601 MADISON AVE 17950421

12/11/2024 9101 MADISON AVE 17950428

12/11/2024 9107 CHAUNCEY WAY 17950429

12/11/2024 5512 CHAUNCEY WAY 17950378

12/11/2024 5432 CHAUNCEY WAY 17950379

12/11/2024 5408 CHAUNCEY WAY 17950380

12/11/2024 5414 MADISON AVE 17950381

12/11/2024 9033 MADISON AVE 17950406

12/11/2024 9039 MADISON AVE 17950408

12/11/2024 9045 MADISON AVE 17950409

12/11/2024 5501 BLUERIDGE CT 17950410

12/11/2024 5439 BLUERIDGE CT 17950411

12/11/2024 5518 CHAUNCEY WAY 17950412

12/11/2024 5525 CHAUNCEY WAY 17950413

12/11/2024 7701 BLUERIDGE CT 17950525

12/11/2024 5419 BLUERIDGE CT 17950427

12/11/2024 5415 MADISON AVE 17950426

12/13/2024 9027 MADISON AVE 17950407

12/13/2024 9021 MADISON AVE 17950431

12/13/2024 9015 MADISON AVE 17950430

12/17/2024 9107 SKYRIDGE DR 17950398

12/17/2024 5701 SKYRIDGE DR 17950453

12/17/2024 5717 SKYRIDGE DR 17950452

12/17/2024 5711 SKYRIDGE DR 17950451

12/17/2024 5710 SKYRIDGE DR 17950450

 DECEMBER 2024 Page 7 of 8
Page 178 of 185



            Date Address Type

12/17/2024 5716 SKYRIDGE DR 17950433

12/17/2024 9011 SKYRIDGE DR 17950432

12/17/2024 5641 SKYRIDGE DR 17950387

12/17/2024 5647 NEW YORK AVE 17950386

12/20/2024 4231 NEW YORK AVE 61381620

Leaks Monthly Total                         1 Detail

12/4/2024 8048 SIERRA ST 6" ST MAIN LEAK 

Distribution Repairs Monthly Total                         1 Detail

12/5/2024 8048 SIERRA ST 6" ST MAIN REPAIR

System Upgrades Monthly Total                         3 Detail

12/9/2024 5225 TUCSON CIR 1" SVC UPGRADE

12/17/2024 4412 PLANTATION DR SAMPLE STATION UPGRADE

12/18/2024 4231 NEW YORK AVE INSTALL NEW 1.5" SERVICE

Year to Date

586

152

WATER MAIN VALVES MAINTAINED YTD

FIRE HYDRANTS MAINTAINED YTD

System Maintenance

 DECEMBER 2024 Page 8 of 8
Page 179 of 185



 

 

January 21, 2025 

Staff Report Briefing Materials 

AGENDA ITEM X.2 

Capital Projects Status Report 

  

 

 

Page 180 of 185



Agenda Item X.2

2024 Year-to-Date Total Project

Project Description 

 2024 Approved 

Budget   

 Budget 

Transfers  2023 C/F** 

 Adjusted Budget 

Amount  

 Year-to-Date-

Expenses Remaining Funds 

YTD 

Percent $ 

Expended

Percent 

Completed

Total 

Budget/Fund to 

Date

Total Expenses 

to Date

Total Project 

Remaining Fund

Total Project 

Percent $ 

Expended

 Prior Years 

Expenses (WIP 

Projects) Project Status Comments

1 New York Well Design (C24WTNYWD) -$                           -$            23,404$         23,404$                   858.30$                 22,546$                   4% 95% 365,546$              343,001$           22,546$             94% 342,142$              Design and specifications are at 95%. FOWD needs to conduct a final review and provide feedback to the consultant.

2 New York Well Drilling & Equipment (C24WTNYWDE) 2,940,000                 -               -                  2,940,000                342,770.84           2,597,229                12% 25% 3,855,744             1,258,514          2,597,229          33% 915,744                 Supplier notes that delivery of pump, motor, and 3R valves are now planned for late February 2025. 
3 Skyway Drilling & Equipment (C24WTSDE) -                             -               341,966         341,966                   333,867.12           8,099                        98% 100% 2,762,903             2,754,803          8,099                 100% 2,420,936             The project is complete.

4 Northridge Well Replacement - Design (C24WTNWRD) 450,000                     450,000                   88,045.29             361,955                   20% 50% 450,000                 88,045                361,955             20% Final design and specifications for drilling phase are under review.

5 Northridge Well Replacement - Equipping (C24WTNWRE) 1,450,000                 1,450,000                -                         1,450,000                0% 0% 1,450,000             -                      1,450,000          0%

6 Gum Ranch Tank Site (C24WTGRTS) 214,000                     -               56,335            270,335                   471.01                   269,864                   0% 14% 317,700                 47,836                269,864             15% 47,365                   

Subtotal Wells & Tanks 5,054,000$               -$            421,705$       5,475,705$             766,012.56$         4,709,693$             9,201,892$           4,492,200$        4,709,693$       3,726,187$           

7 Hydrant Upgrades (C24TDHU) 250,000$                  -$            3,200$            253,200$                 164,863.37$         88,337$                   65% 100% 253,200$              164,863$           88,337$             65% -$                       All work in 2024 completed. No carry forward funding.
8 New Hydrants (C24TDNH) 80,000                       80,000                      25,900.33             54,100                      32% 100% 80,000                   25,900                54,100               32% All work in 2024 completed. No carry forward funding.
9 Minor Main Upgrades (C24TDMU) 75,000                       -               -                  75,000                      34,360.99             40,639                      46% 100% 75,000                   34,361                40,639               46% All work in 2024 completed. No carry forward funding.

10 Services Upgrade (C24TDSU) 538,200                     -               -                  538,200                   328,283.64           209,916                   61% 100% 538,200                 328,284             209,916             50% All work in 2024 completed. No carry forward funding.
11 Developer's Paid - Service Installation and Main Line Projects* 59,100                       -               112,558         171,658                   31,643.12             140,015                   18% 10% 241,302                 101,287             140,015             42% 69,644                   

12 Replacement of Four Distribution Sampling Stations (C24TDSS) 20,000                       -                  20,000                      12,850.96             7,149                        64% 100% 20,000                   12,851                7,149                 64%
Three of four sample stations were installed in 2024.  FOWD has budgeted to install four additional sample stations in 2025.  No 

carry forward funding.

Subtotal 1,022,300$               -$            115,758$       1,138,058$             597,902.41$         540,156$                 1,207,702$           667,546$           540,156$           69,644$                 

13 Hazel Ave. Widening Project Phase III (C24TD255) -$                           -$            1,976$            1,976$                      -$                       1,976$                      0% 100% 1,481,632$           1,479,656$        1,976$               100% 1,479,656$           Work completed.
14 ARV's and Blow-offs (C24TDARV) 50,000                       -               -                  50,000                      12,039.61             37,960                      24% 80% 50,000                   12,040                37,960               100% All work in 2024 completed. No carry forward funding.
15 Replace 12" Steel Main New York Ave. (C24TDNYASW) 2,132,000                 -               -                  2,132,000                751,843.71           1,380,156                35% 80% 2,376,800             996,644             1,380,156          80% 244,800                 Contractor is working on final punchlist items. Paving has been delayed until spring due to weather conditions. 
16 T-Main Replacement Phases I & II - Design (Blue Oak to Winding Oak) (C24TDSH) 145,000                     -               -                  145,000                   11,460.17             133,540                   8% 60% 145,000                 11,460                133,540             8% Consultant is working on the 95% design and specifications. 
17 County Overlay Project- Madison, Kenneth to McKay (C24TDHAKM) 100,000                     -               -                  100,000                   -                         100,000                   0% 0% 100,000                 -                      100,000             0% Sacramento County DOT reported this portion of their project is being moved to the spring of 2026.
18 Greenvale Improvements (C24TDGI) 55,000                       -               -                  55,000                      -                         55,000                      0% 0% 55,000                   -                      55,000               0%

19 Riverfront Lane Service Upgrade (C24TDRFL) 90,900                       -               -                  90,900                      1,330.30                89,570                      1% 8% 100,001                 10,431                89,570               10% 9,101                     Easements and exhibits have been drafted for review and resident's signatures.  Staff reviewing options for main replacement.

Subtotal 2,572,900$               -$            1,976$           2,574,876$             776,673.79$         1,798,202$             4,308,433$           2,510,231$        1,798,202$       1,733,557$           

TOTAL CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 8,649,200$               -$            539,439$       9,188,639$             2,140,588.76$     7,048,050$             14,718,027$         7,669,977$        7,048,050$       5,529,388$           

20 AMR Replacement (M24MMAMR) 250,000$                  -$            39,650$         289,650$                 165,805.25$         123,845$                 57% 70% 289,650$              165,805$           123,845$           100% All work in 2024 completed. No carry forward funding.

21 Large Meter Replacement (M24MMLMR) 25,000                       -               -                  25,000                      10,987.21             14,013                      44% 0% 25,000                   10,987                14,013               90% Requesting $7,000 carry forward funding at the January 21 Board meeting.

22 Meter Replacement (M24MMMR) 140,000                     -               28,959            168,959                   165,210.85           3,748                        98% 70% 168,959                 165,211             3,748                 100% All work in 2024 completed. No carry forward funding.

23 Meter Installation - Residential (M24MMMRES) 5,000                         1,300          -                  6,300                        6,056.68                243                           96% 100% 6,300                     6,057                  243                     100% All work in 2024 completed. No carry forward funding.

METER MAINTENANCE PROGRAM 420,000$                  1,300$        68,609$         489,909$                 348,059.99$         141,849$                 489,909$              348,060$           141,849$           -$                       

24 10317 Corporate Yard Project (A24BUMQDC) 200,000$                  -$            -$                200,000$                 116,442.13$         83,558$                   58% 35% 394,500$              310,942$           83,558$             79% 194,500$              
G/A continues working on resubmitting plans to Sacramento County.  FOWD is paying County review fees as they are being 

received. 
25 10326 Admin. Building (A24BUNB) 5,000$                       -$            -$                5,000$                      -$                       5,000$                      0% 0% 5,000$                   -$                    5,000$               0%

GRAND TOTAL 9,274,200$               1,300$        608,048$       9,883,548$             2,605,090.88$     7,278,457$             15,607,435$         8,328,979$        7,278,457$       5,723,888$           

*New Business development pays for services rendered (this item is a pass through).

**2023 Carryforward funding approved by the Board on January 16, 2024 and March 18, 2024 Regular Board Meetings.

***New York Well 12-inch Replacement Project includes both North and South of Main.

 FAIR OAKS WATER DISTRICT         

CAPITAL PROJECTS STATUS UPDATE: December 31, 2024 

Page 1 of 1

Page 181 of 185



 

 

January 21, 2025 

Staff Report Briefing Materials 

AGENDA ITEM X.3 

Authorizations of Additional Funding 

 

Page 182 of 185



GENERAL MANAGER'S REPORT

January 21, 2025 REGULAR BOARD MEETING

Report as of December 31, 2024

X.3 Authorizations of Additional Funding

Accounting for 2024 Contingency Fund

Project No. E24CONT

Beginning Amount

Date Description Balance Transferred Ending Balance

1/1/2024 Beginning Balance 200,000.00$       -$                      200,000.00$        

1/16/2024 SWRCB - Water System Fees 200,000.00         (500.00)                199,500.00          

1/16/2024 Deferred Compensation 199,500.00         (4,250.00)             195,250.00          

3/18/2024 Hazel Avenue Project #2004 195,250.00         (29,616.00)           165,634.00          

3/18/2024 Gum Ranch Unit 2 Project #1607 165,634.00         (41,969.00)           123,665.00          

8/19/2024 Property Insurance 123,665.00         (7,800.00)             115,865.00          

8/19/2024 Aggregate, Sand & Gravel 115,865.00         (2,500.00)             113,365.00          

8/19/2024 Equipment & Tools Rentals 113,365.00         (1,000.00)             112,365.00          

8/19/2024 Distribution Repairs 112,365.00         (7,500.00)             104,865.00          

9/16/2024 Aggregate, Sand & Gravel 104,865.00         (5,000.00)             99,865.00            

9/16/2024 Equipment Maintenance 99,865.00           (2,000.00)             97,865.00            

9/16/2024 Equipment Repairs 97,865.00           (5,000.00)             92,865.00            

9/16/2024 Other Maintenance Equipment 92,865.00           (2,000.00)             90,865.00            

10/21/2024 New Residential Metering 90,865.00           (1,300.00)             89,565.00            

10/21/2024 Fees - Air Quality 89,565.00           (100.00)                89,465.00            

10/21/2024 Surface Water Supply 89,465.00           (8,900.00)             80,565.00            

11/18/2024 Auto and General Liability Insurance 80,565.00           (54,500.00)           26,065.00            

11/18/2024 Online Bill Pay/Payment Processing 26,065.00           (4,200.00)             21,865.00            

11/18/2024 Water Supply Testing & Sampling 21,865.00           (2,900.00)             18,965.00            

11/18/2024 Distribution Repairs 18,965.00           (7,000.00)             11,965.00            

11/18/2024 Backflow Testing & Supplies 11,965.00           (1,000.00)             10,965.00            

11/18/2024 Water Supply - Energy Cost, Other 10,965.00           (200.00)                10,765.00            

12/16/2024 Life Insurance 10,765.00           (178.00)                10,587.00            

12/16/2024 Computer Hardware 10,587.00           (200.00)                10,387.00            

12/16/2024 Customer Bill Postage 10,387.00           (700.00)                9,687.00              

Total from Contingency (190,313.00)$      

Funds Drawn from Reserves

Transmission Main Break at the Corner of Pershing Ave. and Chestnut Ave. 325,000.00$       

Transmission Main Break at the Corner of Pershing Ave. and Chestnut Ave. (Reimb.) (176,540.00)        

Total from Reserves 148,460.00$       

Total Authorizations of Additional Funding 338,773.00$       

Page 183 of 185



 

 

January 21, 2025 

Staff Report Briefing Materials 

AGENDA ITEM X.5 

Claims Against District 

 

 

 

 

Page 184 of 185



Processing of Claims

24-01 6/14/2024
None 

Given

24-02 11/14/2024
None 

Given

24-03 12/9/2024
None 

Given

Denied

Not SettledMain Break - Property

FAIR OAKS WATER DISTRICT

Type of Claim

SUBJECT:

JANUARY 21, 2025 REGULAR MEETING
GENERAL MANAGER'S REPORT TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Information Item

December 31, 2024

Yes

REPORT AS OF:

DISTRICT CLAIMS RECEIVED

Claim Status
Claim 

Amount

STATUS:

Main Break - Property

Claim #
Settlement 

Amount

JPIA 

Contacted

?

$0.00

Yes

T-Main Leak - Property

Date Claim 

Received

Yes $6,318.47Settled

Page 185 of 185


	AGENDA
	III.1a Approval of Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting of December 16, 2024
	III.2 Accept and File Treasurer’s Report for the month of December 2024
	III.3 File Investment Report for the month of November 2024
	III.4 Accept and File Monthly Financial Expense Report for the month of December 2024
	III.5 Approval of Warrants
	III.6 Approval of Cal-Card Statements for the month of December 2024
	III.7 Accept and File Board Expense Report for the month of December 2024
	V.1 Discussion and direction on the process for the appointment of the Director to represent FOWD Division 2
	V.3 Update and discussion on “Make Water a California Way of Life” regulations that took effect on January 1, 2025
	VI.1 Consider appointments to serve as District representatives to various organizations and committees
	VI.2 Sacramento Region comments on the Draft Sacramento / Delta Bay-Delta Updates to the Water Quality Control Plan
	VI.3 Discussion on FOWD Water Supply for the month of December 2024 and 2024 year-end
	VI.4 Discussion and possible action on 2024 funds for work in progress projects to be carried forward to 2025 and additional funding for 2025 expenses
	VI.6 Update and discussion on FOWD 2024 Metered Water Deliveries
	VI.7 Update and discussion on FOWD fire hydrants and readiness to perform
	VI.8 Discussion and possible action on General Manager’s Amended and Restated Employment Agreement
	X.1 Maintenance Work Report
	X.2 Capital Projects Status Report
	X.3 Authorizations of Additional Funding
	X.5 Claims Against District



